








8.  COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS — ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST

{**ftems of Community Inferest defined below)

9. ADJOURNMENT

** ftems of Community Interest includes: 1)expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; 2) information regarding
holiday schedules; 3} an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other citizen, except that
a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary
recognition for purposes of this subdivision; 4) a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the
goveming body; 5) information regarding a social, ceremonial, or communily event organized or sponscred by an entity
other than the goveming body thaf was attended oris scheduled to be attended by a member of the goveming body or an
official empioyee of the municipality; and §) announcements invoiving an imminent threat to the public health and sefety
of people in the municipality that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. (SB 1182 - effective 09/01/2009)

City Council shall have the right at anytime to seek legal advice in Executive Session from its Attorney on any
agenda item, whether posted for Executive Session or not.

Posted on the bulle n&n board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonlo Street, Lockhart,
Texas, onthe _ AN D gz o, ;

dofd
City Councif — October 8. 2020






Resolution 2020-23

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
ADOPTING A TARGET INDUSTRY STRATEGY REPORT; PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, in January, 2020, the City of Lockhart (“City”} and the Lockhart Economic
Development Corporation (“LEDC”) retained Garner Economics, LLC to assist in preparing a
“Competitive Realities Report and Target Industry Strategy” in order to assist the City and the
LEDC to focus its economic development priorities to help create jobs in the Comumunity by
focusing efforts that leverage the community’s assets and strengths.; and

WHEREAS, the TIS prepared by Garner Economics, LLC is complete and has been
reviewed by the Board and staff of the LEDC; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of Lockhart, Texas to approve and adopt
the TIS;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
LOCKHART, TEXAS, that:

1. The foregoing recitals are adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes.

2. The report titled “Competitive Realities Report and Target Industry Strategy” prepared
by Garner Economics, LLC, a copy of which is attached hereto, is hereby approved and
adopted as the Target Industry Strategy for the LEDC.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED effective on this, the 8 day of October 2020.
City of Lockhart:

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, City Secretary Monte Akers, City Attorney


















































































































































































































































































































































































































ORDINANCE 2020-25

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF
LOCKHART, TEXAS, TO RECLASSIFY THE PROPERTY KNOWN AS 1.778 ACRES IN THE BYRD LOCKHART SURVEY,
ABSTRACT NQ. 17, LOCATED AT 416 NORTH CHURCH STREET, FROM CMB COMMERCIAL MEDIUM BUSINESS
DISTRICT TO PDD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INCLUDING BY-REFERENCE A PDD DEVELOPMENT
PLAN FOR MAIN SPRINGS PLANNED DEVELOPMENT,

WHEREAS, on September 23, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing and voted to
recommend approval of said change; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the zoning map as provided in Section 64-128 of the Code of
Ordinances; and,

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held in conformance with applicable law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, THAT:
I The foregoing recitals are approved and adopted herein for all purposes.

Il. The above-referenced property described in Zoning Change request ZC-20-11 as 1,778 acres in the Byrd
Lockhart Survey, Abstract No. 17, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and located at 416 North Church
Street, will be reclassified from CMB Commercial Medium Business District to PDD Planned Development
District, including by-reference PDD-20-02, a POD Development Plan for Main Springs Planned Development.

ll. Severability: If any provision, section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held
to be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or unenforced, the validity of the remainder of this ordinance or its
application shall not be affected, it being the intent of the City Council in adopting and of the Mayor in
approving this ordinance that no portion, provision, or regulation contained herein shall become inoperative
or fail by way of reasons of any unconstitutionality or invalidity of any other portion, provision or regulation.

IV. Repealer: That all other ordinances, sections, or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City of
Lockhart in conflict with the provisions set out above in this ordinance are herehy repealed or amended as
indicated. '

V. Publication: That the City Secretary is directed to cause this ordinance caption to be published in a
newspaper of general circulation according to law.

Vi. Effective Date: That this ordinance shal! become effective and be in full force immediately upon and from
the date of its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL ON THIS THE
8" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2020.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, TRMC, City Secretary Monte Akers, City Attorney , [l D
























Donna Blair and Tamara Carlisle
2120 Enterprises, LLC

September 14th, 2020

To whom it may concern:

We are the owners of 435 N Church St, which is located across the street from the proposed
development. We have met with Winn Smith, reviewed the plans, and discussed the future
muiti-use development that he proposes to build. We support and appreciate the development
group’s initiative to bring progress and tourism to this community. We are especially in favor of
incorporating trails and nature into their proposed plan.

Sinceraly,
Donna Blair and Tamara Carlisle
512-657-1850

14 4



Pan Gibson

R el S A —
From: JANET CHRISTIAN <janetch@mac.com>
Sent: ' Waednesday, September 23, 2020 10:40 AM
To: Jeff Castleberry; Dan Gibson; Lew White
Subject: Please submit this at tonight's Planning and Zaning meeting

Dear members of the Lockhart Ptanning & Zoning Commission,

As owners of a building (containing two businesses) in the Central Business District, we would like to express a
strong objection to any consideration that would allow a church in the CBD. Our building is within 300 feet of
the proposed church location, which would directly, negatively affect the existing businesses occupying our
building spaces.

A church can open anywhere in Lockhart and be successful. There is no need at all for a church to locate in the
Central Business District. The CBD should be for businesses that focus on customer services, such as retail and
food. A church will seriously damage the CBD’s ability to support local businesses, especially restaurants or
music venues, because of TABC Code 109.33, which prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages within 300 feet of
a church,

We are asking that you please do not approve this zoning request change.
Regards,

Janet Christian

Eric Marsh

Owners:

118 S Commerce Street
207 East Market Street

1 ILl C]















NEIGHBORHOOD COMPATIBILITY: The greatest impact will likely be traffic generated by the
development, depending on the type of businesses occupying the commerciai buildings. The low number
of vacation rental urits and townhouse condominium units will not generate excessive traffic. The
development is proposed to be dark-sky compliant, so the impact of night lighting should not be an issue.

FORM AND CONTENT: There are no deficiencies.

COMPLIANCE WITH STANDARDS: The proposed development will include a five-foot wide public sidewalk
along North Church Street, which is one-foot wider than the minimum required. There are several other
deviations from normal ordinance standards. One is that there will be no public sidewalk along the North
Main Street frontage because there is no actual street in that segment of the right-of-way where the
street terminates in a dead end. A concurrent subdivision variance was requested as part of the final plat
application, which has been approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. In addition, much of the
required parking is being provided in the North Church Street right-of-way instead of on the private
property. Lastly, zero building setbacks are proposed along the east and west boundaries of the property
instead of the setbacks normally required by the conventional zoning districts (roof eaves or awnings will
not be allowed to extend across any property line). As allowed by the subdivision regulations, a fee will
be paid in lieu of dedicating parkland for the apartment and townhome condominium land use elements
of the development,

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: None.

154


















DocuSign Envelope ID: FSE2E17A-08D8-44E1-BEIT-BS7169F 74088

SDUNAWAY

OWNER AUTHORIZATION LETTER

I/we hereby certify that I/we am/are the owner(s} of the above described
property. l/we am/are respectfully requesting processing and approval of the
above referenced permit(s) review. |/we hereby authorize the Applicant listed on
this application to act on my/our behaif during the processing and presentation of
this request. This shall be the principal contact with the City in processing this
application.

e

Name/Company
DocuSigned by:
% 8/21/2020
—— EDEEDE eI aE AR .
Owner’s Signature Date

M/ﬂf L ﬁt{pﬁ

-2l - 2020

Date

Agent’s Signature

5707 Soulhwest Parkway, Bulkding 2, Suite 250 2 Ausfin, Texos 70733 & Tel S123068252 & Foo§12.004.7240 & dmowayguocioles.com
Taxas Reghlered Enginoaring Frm No: F-1114 & Texas Predessona Lond Sursng Firm Mot HOOSS900

ot































2.1

2.3

2.4

2.5

and to provide a direct link with the LPD.

Article 2 SRO PROGRAM
STRUCTURE

Under this framework, the SROs are first and foremost law enforcement officers for the City of
Lockhart. The SROs shall be responsible for carrying out all duties and responsibilities of a law
enforcement officer and shall remain at all times under the control, through the chain of command,
of the Lockhart Police Department (the LPD). School officials should ensure that non-criminal
student disciplinary matters remain the responsibility of school staff and not the SROs.
Enforcement of the Student Code of Conduct is the responsibility of teachers and administrators.
The SROs shall refrain from being involved in the enforcement of disciplinary rules that do not
constitute vielations of law, except to support staff in maintaining a safe school environment.

Although the SROs have been placed in a formal educational environment, the SROs retain official
duties of law enforcement officers. The SROs shall intervene when it is necessary to prevent any
criminal act or maintain a safe school environment. Citations shall be issued and arrests made when
appropriate and in accordance with Texas law and LPD policy. The SROs or the LPD will have
the final decision on whether criminal charges shall be filed. The LPD reserves the right to
temporarily remove the SROs in the event that additional officers are needed during a critical
tncident, natural disaster or for immediate service of public safety.

The SROs are not formal counselors or educators, and wiil not act as such. However, with the
agreement of the LPD, the SROs may be used as a law enforcement resource to assist students,
faculty, staff, and all persons involved with the school. The SROs can be utilized to help instruct
students and staff on a variety of subjects, ranging from alcohol and drug education to formalized
academic classes. The SROs may use these opportunities to build rapport between the students and
the staff.

The SROs will confer with the principal, as needed, to develop plans and strategies to prevent
and/or minimize dangerous situations and criminal activity on or ncar the campus or involving
students at school-related activities.

The SROs will notify the campus principal if it is necessary for them to be out-of-district during
regular school hours during non-emergency situations.

Article 3 SERVICES TO BE
PROVIDED

The City, through its Police Department, will be responsible for the following:

3.1,

Providing police officers licensed by the State of Texas for service as school resource officer
(SROs) to be assigned to the Lockhart High School and Lockhart Junior High School campuses
for the 2020-2021 school year.

()



33

34

35

3.7

3.8

SROs will be assigned on a full-time basis, forty (40) hours each work week, according to the daily
schedules agreed upon by the Parties, less any scheduled vacation time, sick time, training time,
court time, or any other law enforcement related activity, including emergencies.

The Parties acknowledge the importance of having the same SROs present in Lockhart ISD on a
day-to-day basis in order to promote continuity and familiarity with Lockhart ISD and its students.
To that end, the Parties agree that every effort should be made o schedule and/or designate the
SROs vacation days, compensatory time, and other days off at times when school is not in session
or at other times when the SROs’ absences will not otherwise create an unnecessary risk or hamper
school operations. The SROs will coordinate vacation hours with the principal of the school to
which each SRO is assigned.

Should any officer assigned as an SRO during the active school year be absent for more than two
consecutive school days, the LPD shall notify principal of the campus to which the SRO is assigned
with the name of the officer substituting during the absence. Lockhart ISD must approve of the
officer who is assigned as a substitute.

The SROs shall follow the policies and procedures of Lockhart ISD to the extent those policies do
not conflict with the policies and procedures of the City or LPD.

The SROs will coordinate and cooperate with the Lockhart ISD Superintendent and other Lockhart
ISD administrative staff in carrying out their day-to-day duties as SROs. The City retains final
authority over the SROs’ law enforcement responsibilities. The SROs may, however, take the
school’s wishes into consideration, as the officer deems appropriate.

The duties, schedule, and responsibilities of SROs on days when school is not in session shall be
determined solely at the discretion of the LPD.

SROs DUTIES: The ultimate goal of the SRO is to maintain a peaceful environment that allows
the learning process to continue uninterrupted. The duties to be performed by the SROs include,
but are not limited to, the following:

a. Establish a bond and act as liaison between the LPD and schoo! administrators and student
in an effort to reduce or eliminate the opportunity for crime, project a positive image of the
LPD and improve the quality of life within the school and community.

b. Patrolling areas within or in the vicinity of the geographical boundaries of Lockhart ISD to
protect all students, personnel, and visitors.

c. Being a visible presence during the school day in order to assist the Lockhart [SD
administration with general public safety services during school hours.

d. Helping Lockhart ISD administrators maintain the peace and/or address a breach of the
peace as needed.

()

71






3.9

3.10

g. Preparing reports and documentation related to events occwrring within the geographic
boundaries of the City of Lockhart,

r. Participate, as necessary or requested by the District, in District or campus Threat
Assessment Teams, as described by Texas Education Code § 37.115.

s. Performing other duties that may be assigned from time to time by Lockhart [SD, provided
that the duty is legitimately and reasonably related to the services as described herein and
is consistent with Federal and State law, local ordinances and orders, laws applicable to
Lockhart ISD, Lockhart ISD’s policies, procedures, rules, or regulations relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement, and the policies, procedures, rules, and regulations of the

City.

When the SROs take a person into custody in the course of performing their duties on behalf of
Lockhart ISD under this Agreement, Lockhart [SD shall receive notification of the incident from
the City within the timeframe required by law and of the disposition of the individual to the extent
allowed by law.

REPORTING DUTIES: Lockhart [SD and LPD shall maintain records of every campus-based

incident resulting in police involvement. The records shall be disaggregated by:

« Description of the incident

» Names of the officials involved

» Name of student involved

+ Manner in which the LPD was notitied

+ Searches/questioning of students

+ Tickets, citations, or summonses issued

* Arrests made

+ Filing of delinquency petitions, referrals to a probation officer, and other referrals to the
juvenile justice system, and

* Any police action the SRO took relative to the offense.

Data shall also be disaggregated by:

*» Race

« Ethnicity
»  Age

v Grade

+  Gender

+ Disability
+ FEnglish-language learner status, and
+ Economicaily disadvantaged status.

[f it is necessary to question or interview a student at school tor any purpose other than a chiid
abuse investigation, the SROs will contact the campus principal of the student’s campus. The
principal will:

L)









52

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Article 5
TRAINING

All SROs placed with the District shail complete the education and training program required by
Section 1701.263, Texas Occupations Code. Such training must be completed with 120 days of
placement at the District.

All SROs place with the District shall complete an active shooter response training program
approved by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement in accordance with Texas Education
Code § 37.0812(a).

All SROs place with the District shall complete a Texas Education Agency-approved training on
the use of a bleeding control station in accordance with Texas Education Code § 38.030(b)(3)(B).

Article 6
FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES & EQUIPMENT

The City shall provide the SROs with all wages, salaries, or other compensation, and benefits of
similariy-situated and classified employees of the City. The City shall also be directly responsible
for the payment of all payroll taxes, bond costs, retirement contributions, overtime, social security
taxes, if any, and all other payroll expenses.

Lockhart ISD will be responsibie for reimbursing the City at the end of school year for the SRO’s
salary and benefits as the approved school calendar of student in person learning plus two additional
days as set out in Exhibit A, In addition, Lockhart ISD will be responsible for reimbursing the City
of Lockhart at the end of the school year for the police supervisor’s salary and benefits for 30% of
approved school calendar plus two additional days. Lockhart [SD agrees to reimburse the City of
Lockhart for the cost of two vehicles as detailed in Exhibit A and the cost for uniform and
equipment for two officers as detailed in Exhibit A.

The City shall keep and maintain accurate records of dates of service and the hours served by the
SROs. The City shall be responsible for calculating and documenting the charge for services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. With 48-hour notice, the City shall promptly provide
Lockhart ISD with access to all time calculation records maintained by the City for any SRO
services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

Overtime hours that relate to SRO duties must be authorized and approved by the Lockhart [SD
Superintendent prior to the pertormance of the overtime work and will be paid in accordance with
procedures established by the City. The Parties acknowledge that emergency situations or
unscheduled events may require overtime hours for the SROs without advanced notice. Should
such emergency or unplanned event occur, the SROs shatl notify the Superintendent the next work
day, or as soon as practicabte. Excluding emergencies and unplanned events, if the SROs fail to
obtain such permission for overtime hours, the City will be responsibie for the costs of any
overtime compensation to the SROs.

l%



6.6

7.1

7.4

Lockhart [SD will pay for any additional SRO training that Lockhart [SD may require unrelated to
TCOLE training requirements.

The Parties agree to provide the following equipment and materials to the SROs:

a. The City shall furnish the SROs with all equipment routinely assigned to law enforcement
personnel who serve the City. The City will maintain and service all equipment used by
the SROs in providing services to Loockhart [SD. Equipment includes, but is not limited to,
uniforms, computers and computer equipment, firearms, radios, and all other devices used
by the City law enforcement personnel in the performance of their duties. City will also
provide a fully equipped patrol car to each SRO.

b. Lockhart [SD will provide the SROs with office space on school property, a telephone,
computer, and other office equipment to perform duties under this Agreement, and as
mutually agreed by the Parties. Lockhart ISD will provide the SROs with a map and
personnel roster for each campus and Central Office.

C. The Lockhart ISD will provide the SROs with access to its facilities as needed to conduct
law enforcement business regarding the securing of evidence in ¢rimes and interviewing
individuals in connection with a criminal investigation into crimes conducted on school
property on in conjunction with a school event or activity.

Article 7
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, this Agreement is a contract for and with
respect to the performance of governmental functions by governmental entities. The relationship
of Lockhart ISD and the City shall, with respect to that part of any service or function undertaken
as a result of or pursuant to this Agreement, be that of independent contractors.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the Parties, or by any third party, as
creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint ventures, or any other similar such
relationship.

Otficers employed by the Ciry and assigned by the LPD to serve as SROs at Lockhart [SD are and
will remain City employees.

The City shall have no liability whatsoever for or with respect to Lockhart ISD’s use of any
Lockhart ISD property or facility, or the actions of, or failure to act by, any employees,
subcontractors, agents or assigns of Lockhart [SD. Lockhart ISD covenants and agrees that:






7.8

7.9

No term or provision of this Agreement shall benefit or obligate any person or entity not a party to
it. This Agreement shall not be interpreted nor construed to give to any third party the right to any
claim or cause of action, and neither the City nor Lockhart ISD shall be held legally liable for any
claim or cause of action arising pursuant to, or out of the services provided under, this Agreement
except as specifically provided herein or by law. The Parties hereto shall cooperate fully in
opposing any attempt by any third person or entity to claim any benefit, protection, release, or
other consideration under this Agreement.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to extend, increase or limit the jurisdiction or authority
of any of the City or Lockhart ISD except as necessary to implement, perform and obtain the
services and duties provided for in this Agreement. Save and except only as specifically provided
in this Agreement, all governmental functions and services traditionally provided by Lockhart ISD,
and all governmental and proprietary functions and services traditionally provided by the City,
shall be and remain the sole responsibility of each such party.

19



g.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.6

8.7

Article 8
TERVI

The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on August 1, 2020, and continue through
June 30, 2021, and shall automatically renew for an annual term commencing on August 1+
thereafter, unless terminated earlier, in writing, by either party.

If the City wishes to renew this Agreement subject to a change in Lockhart 1SD’s annual payment for

the SROs’ salaries and related costs, the City shall provide Lockhart [SD with written notice of that
requested change, including a revised Summary of Calculations for Costs, no later than April 1% of the
calendar year. Unless Lockhart ISD notifies the City in writing of its agreement to the change in
annual payment by June [ 5%, the Agreement between the City and Lockhart [SD shall terminate at the

end of the term.

After the initial annual term of this Agreement, Lockhart ISD and the City will agree on the annual
amount payable for the SROs’ salaries and related costs by executing an agreed upon Summary of
Calculations for Costs.

This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either Party, without cause, by giving the other
party a minimum of sixty (60) days written notice of its intention to terminate, such notice to be
delivered by hand or U.S. Certified Mail to the other party.

This Agreement may be terminated by either Party, for cause, by the giving the other party a
minimum of thirty (30) days written notice of its intention to terminate, such notice to be delivered
by hand or U.S. Certified Mail to the other party.

In the event the Parties are unable to reach a mutual agreement on the terms of the Memorandum
ot Understanding described in Article 3 above by August 1+ of the annual term, any Party will have
cause to terminate its participation in the Interlocal Agreement by giving the other Parties a
minimum of thirty (30} days written notice of its intention to terminate, such notice to be delivered
by hand or LS. Certified Mail to the other party.

Termination will not relieve Lockhart [SD of its obligation to pay the City for any amounts due
and payable for services performed prior to termination. Lockhart ISD is not obligated for any
costs or payments that accrue after the termination of this Agreement.



9.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.6

ARTICLE 9
NOTIFICATIONS

All correspondence and communications regarding this Agreement shall be directed to:

CITY OF LOCKHART LOCKHART INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Attn: Chief of Police Antn: Superintendent of Schools

Notices provided pursuant to this Agreement must be in writing and hand-delivered or sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested.

ARTICLE 10
MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

[f any portion of this Agreement shall be deemed void or invalid, the remaining portions of the
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the Parties, and it supersedes any prior
understanding or written or oral agreement relating to the subject matter herein. This Agreement
may not be modified, altered, changed, or amended, except by written agreement of the Parties.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas, and venue shall be in Caldwell County, Texas unless otherwise mandated by law.

No Party shall assign or otherwise transfer its interest in this Agreement without the express written
permission of the other Party.

This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be
an original and all of which shall be considered fully executed when all parties have exccuted an
identical counterpart, notwithstanding that all signatures may not appear on the same counterpart.

By the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the undersigned individuals warrant that they
have been duly authorized by their governing body in order to enter into and perform the terms of
this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hercto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding as of

the day of September 2020.



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

By
Lew White, Mayor, City of Lockhart

ATTEST:

By

Connie Constancio, TRMC City
Secretary/Administration Services Mgr.

LOCKHART INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

By
Steve Johnson, President, LISD School Board

ATTEST:

By

Tom Guyton, Secretary, LISD School Board



9/23/2020 12:45PM

2020-2021 SRO Cost Summary

Exhibit A
High School Ir. High Supervisor Total

Salary $ 6052800 $ 54,267.20 $ 79,872.00 $ 194,667.20 |
_Benef'its S 2542176 S 22,79222 & 33,546.24 S 81,760.22
12 month total cost $ 85949.76 $ 77,050.42 $ 113,418.24 § 276,427.42
[Percent LISD: 66.15% (1,376 hrs/2,080 hours) S 5685577 $ 5097481 $ 7502617 S 182,856.74
Times percent of time charged to LISD: 100% 100% 30%
Total LISD Salary/benefits costs $ 56,855.77 $ 50,974.81 $ 22,507.85 S 130,338.42

Cost per hour S 41.32 S 37.05 § 16.36
Vehicle Costs {$45,436/8 years + $1,360.45 maint) $ 7,039.95 $ 7,039.95 $ - $ 14,079.90
Uniforms and eguigrr_n_t_eq_fn _

12 month costs [ 5,051.00 § 5,051.00 § - S 10,102.00

Divided by 5 years useful life _ $ 101020 $ 1,010.20 $ - $ 2,020.40
Grand Total $ 6490592 $ 59,02496 § 22,507.85 $ 146,438.72

Cost per hour: 5 47.17 S 4290 S 16.36 S 53.21

3P









valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
LEDC and MERCANTILE agree as follows:

AGREEMENTS

Section 1. Recitals

The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set
forth in their entirety.

Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreement shall be two (2) years from the effective date of this
EDPA.

Section 3, MERCANTILE Performance Requirements

[n consideration of LEDC agreeing to provide the Grant described below in
Section 4, MERCANTILE agrees to perform the fotlowing:

(a} To make the improvements and repairs described in the BIG Program
Application filed by the owners of Lockhart Mercantile, Reuben G. and Rosie
Perez, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all
purposes (“the Improvements);

{b) Commence construction of the Improvements within one hundred twenty

(120) days after the City’s approval of the construction plans and issuance of a
building permit for the same.

(¢) Complete construction of the improvements, at a cost of at least $41,000.00
within eighteen (18) months after the issuance of the aforesaid building
permit,

(d) MERCANTILE shall provide LEDC with proof of making the Improvements
by submifting copies of receipts for expenditures satisfactory to LEDC, which
shalt be provided within thitty (30) days of completion of the Improvements.

(¢) Keep current in the payment of taxes owed for the facility to any taxing

Jurisdiction in which the Property is located unless such taxes are being
legally contested by MERCANTIL.E.

Section 4. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of MERCANTILE's agreement to loeate its business within the
City and to perform the other acts hereinafier described. LEDC agrees it will:

g



{(a) Provide a Grant to MERCANTILE of not more than $20,000.00 of the cost of
making the Improvements.

(b) Provide the Grant to MERCANTILE within fourteen (14) days of receiving

satisfactory proof of MERCANTILE’s completion of construction of the
Improvements.

Section 5. Termination and Recapiure

(a) In the event that MERCANTILE discontinues operations for a period of
more than one hundred eighty (180) days during the duration of this
Agreement, then in such event MERCANTILE shall be required to repay
to LEDC any monies expended by LEDC under Section 4 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand from LEDC
therefore following the expiration of such period; provided however that
MERCANTILE shall not be required to repay such monies if such
discontinuation of operations is caused by force majeure.

For the purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure™ shali be defined as
fire, explosion, natural disaster or other act of God, war, pandemic, or
civil unrest, taking under eminent domain, regulatory restrictions or action
of any applicable governmental entity, or other event or action that makes
the conduct of the MERCANTILE illegal or economically unsustainable is
beyond the reasonable control of MERCANTILE. MERCANTILE shall
not be required to repay such amounts so long as it is, in the opinion of the
LEDC, ditigently taking action(s) to renew or continue operations.

(b} In the event, that MERCANTILE shall fail to repay LEDC within thirty
(30) days of the date such repayment is due according to the written
demand from LEDC, MERCANTILE hereby agrees that LEDC may

enforce all of its rights and remedies available at law and in equity against
MERCANTILE.

Section 6. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, when executed, contains the entire agreement between LEDC
and MERCANTILE with respect to the transactions contemplated herein.  This

Agreement may be amended. altered. or revoked only by written instrument signed by
LEDC and MERCANTILE.

Section 7. Successors and Assigns

Neither party shall assign its rights, obligations. or interest in this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party, In the event of consent to such
assignment or in the event of legal succession of MERCANTILE's interest in this

1471






LEDC hereby represents, warrants, and covenants that:

(a) It is a Type B Economic Development Corporation, duly organized and
validly existing under the laws of the State, particularly Sections 501 and 505
of the Texas Local Government Code.

(b) The facility constitutes a “project” as defined in Sections 501.101 and 505.155
of the Texas Local Government Code.

(c) All requirements related to public notice of the project, particularly those
inciuded in Section 505.160 of the Texas Local Government Code, have been
satisfied.

(d) The person executing this Agreement on behalf of the LEDC is fully
authorized to do so.

Section 13. Representations and Warranties of MERCANTILE.

(a) It is a duly incorporated business entity with full authority to enter into this
Agreement.

{b) The person executing this Agreement on behalf of MERCANTILE is fully
authorized to do so.
]
IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on
the day of . 2020.

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:

Steven Lewis, LEDC President
ATTEST:

Michael Kamerlander, LEDC Secretary

Reuben G. and Rosemary Perez
d/b/a LOCKHART MERCANTILE

Reuven (. Perez Rosemary Perez

LA

144






4.2Discussion and/or action regarding minutes from the August 10, 2020 meeting.
Motion to approve the minutes from the August 10, 2020 meeting.
Motion: Alfredo Munoz Second: Umesh Patel Vote: 6 of 6

4.3 Discussion and/or action regarding sales tax and financial statements for August
2020.

Pam Larison gave an overview of the of the financials as well as the sales tax report. Ms.
Larison noted that sales tax collections are tracking well above the budget even with
COVID-19. LEDC expenditures are in line with the budget with many line items below
budget.

Motion to approve the August sales tax and financial statements as presented
Motion: Morris Alexander Second: Umesh Patel Vote: 6 of 6

4.4 Discussion and/or action regarding and economic development performance
agreement with Lockhart Mercantile regarding a BIG Grant Application.

Lockhart Mercantile requested a BIG Grant for assistance with a facade improvement
that would allow a reimbursement of up to $20,000 for allowable expenses under the
program. Lockhart Mercantile has completed all necessary steps prior to construction
commencing.

Motion to approve the Economic Development Performance Agreement with Lockhart
Mercantile.

Motion: Alfredo Munoz Second: Morris Alexander Vote: 6 of 6

4.5 Discussion and/or action moving the October LEDC Regular Meeting date from
Columbus Day.

Board discussed due to certain projects and a holiday that the board meeting will be
held on October 19, 2020 instead of October 12, 2020. No motion necessary.

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION
4.1 Close Open Session and Convene Executive Session pursuant to Secs. 551.072
and 551.087 (Economic Development) of the Texas Open Meetings Act.
Gov't Code Ch. 55i, to discuss the following:
» Projects Crimson Tide;
s Buffet
Into Executive Session at 7:12 p.m.
Out of Executive Session at 8:08 p.m.

Staff was provided direction in Executive Session with no official action taken in open
session.

DISCUSSION ONLY
5.1 Activity Updates

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, September 14, 2020 - 6:00 P.M.
Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81339571449
Meeting ID; 813 3957 1449
(346) 248 7799
Page 2 of 3

41



Mr. Kamerlander gave an update on the LEDC Staff activities for August 2020.

ADJOURN

Minutes approved this the day of , 2020,

Alan Fielder, Chairman LEDC

Michael Kamerlander, Secretary LEDC

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELQOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Monday, September 14, 2020 - 6:00 P.M.
Join Zoom Meeting
https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/81339571449
Meeting ID: 813 3857 1449
(346) 248 7792
Page 3 of 3






HANGAR GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
Ground Lessor

AND

LOCKHART HANGAR PARTNERS, LLC

Ground Lessee

4y






ARTICLE 2: LEASED PREMISES

2.1 The Leased Premises consist of the parcel of land described in Exhibit "A." The Lessee
acknowledges that: (1) the Lessor makes no representations or warranty regarding the suitability
of the Leased Premises for the Lessee’s intended purposes, or the presence or absence of
environmental, geologic. or other site conditions that may affect the Lessee's use of the Leased
Premuses; (2) Lessee accepts full responsibility for determining the suitability of the Leased
Premises for its intended purposes; (3) Lessee has inspected and performed all tests and
investigations of the Leased Premises for its intended purposes; and (4) Lessee is accepting the
Leased Premises “as is,” in their present condition, and Lessee agrees to perform all preparation,
repairs, remediation, and alteration activities necessary to use the Leased Premises for Lessee’s
intended purposes. Lessee expressly disclaims reliance upon any statement, oral or written, made

by any agent of the City concerning the condition, suitability, or business prospects of the Leased
Premises.

ARTICLE 3: USE OF LEASED PREMISES

3.1 Lessee shall use and occupy the Leased Premises for the following purposes and
for no other purpose whatsoever unless approved in writing by City:

311 For the construction, installation, maintenance and operation of a hangar
building or buildings {the “Hangars™) to be used for the parking, storage, servicing, repair,
maintenance, and modification, of aircraft, and may allow for other aviation related business
subject to approval by City. No sublease shall be valid unless each such sublease is approved in
writing by the City and conforms to all applicable laws and the Airport Rules and Minimum
Standards then in effect (the “Rules” and “Minimum Standards™). Any such commercial use nust
also be consistent with the City of Lockhart, Texas, building, use and zoning regulations and
requirements applicable to the Leased Premises. Lessee warrants that all such aircraft based at
the Leased Premises shall comply with noise standards established under Part 36 of Titie 14 of
the Code of Federal Regulations, ("FAR 36") as amended from time to time. The Leased Premises
shall not be used for residential purposes. Lessee shall comply with all Grant Assurances in favor
of the State of Texas or the United States. All of Lessee’s rights shall be subordinate to such Grant
Assurances and other obligations to the United States or State of Texas.

312 The City makes no representations, guarantees, or warranties that the
Leased Premises may be lawfully used for the purposes set forth in this Article 3.1. Lessec shall
have the sole responsibility of obtaining all applicable permits or other governmental approvals
necessary to use the Leased Premises. This Agreement is expressly conditioned upon Lessee
obtaining all such permits and approvals, and the failure of Lessee to apply forany such permits
or approvals within six months following the commencement date set forth in Article 1.1. The
failure of Lessee to maintain any such permits or approvals during the term of this Agrecment
shall resuit in termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article 18.

313 During the term of this Agreement, Lessee must regularly house at least
one airworthy aircraft in each Hangar structure, use each Hangar for the primary purpose of
aircraft storage, and each Hangar shall be used for Aeronautical Activities only. unless the prior
written permission of the City is first obtained. The term “Acronautical Activities” shall mean
any activity or service that involves. makes possible, facilitates. is related to, assists in. or is

-
3

191









activities conducted in whole or part on the Leased Premises, may be collected by the City as
additional rent under this Agreement, in addition to any other remedies available to the City.

4.8 The City agrees to waive the Security Deposit as additional security for Lessee’s
obligations to Lessor {"Security Deposit") on condition that Lessee timely pays the monthly rent
and the Lessee is not in default of this Agreement. Such Security Deposit shall be equal to one
monthly installment of rent. If during this Agreement Lessee fails to pay rent when due or is in
default of any term or condition of this agreement, then Lessee must immediately post a Security
Deposit with Lessor so that the Security Deposit being held by Lessor is equal to one monthly
installment of rent. No interest shall be paid on the Security Deposit. Lessor shall not be required
to keep the Security Deposit separate from its other accounts and no trust relationship is created
with respect to the Security Deposit. Any interest from the Security Deposit shall be retained by
Lessor. The Security Deposit is not an advance payment of rent or a measure of liquidated
damages in case of default by Lessee. Upon the occurrence of any event of default, Lessor may,
from time to time, without prejudice to any other remedy provided herein or provided by law, use
the Security Deposit to the extent necessary to make good any atrearages of rent and any other
damage, injury, expense or liability caused to Lessor by such event of default, or to satisfy
Lessee’s other obligations hereunder. Following any such application of the Security Deposit,
Lessee shall pay to Lessor, on demand, the amount so applied in order to fully restore the Security
Deposit. If Lessee is not then in default, and no condition exists, which, with the passage of time
or both, would constitute a default when this Agreement expires or terminates, except as otherwise
provided for in this Agreement, Lessor will return any unused portion of the Security Deposit to
Lessee within thirty
(30) days after the last to occur of (i) the Expiration Date, (ii) payment of all rent and any damages,
(iii) Lessee’s surrender of the Premises in accordance with this Agreement, and (iv) Lessor’s
receipt of Lessee’s forwarding address. Lessee’s actual or attempted assignment, transfer, or
encumbrance of the Security Deposit will not bind Lessor.

4.9 Holdover rent shall be due at the rate of 200%.

4.10 Any person, corporation, partnership, association or business entity of any
kind, or any person acting for or through them, including, but not limited to, any wholesale
fuel distribution company, who delivers fuel to a fuel storage tank or who delivers fuel
obtained from a source not on the Airport directly into any aircraft on the Airport must pay
the flowage fee of 30.05 per gallon of fuel delivercd. Payment to the City of all fuel flowage
fees must be made not later than the fifteenth (15" day of the month for fuel delivered in the

preceding month,

G



ARTICLE 3: ACCEPTANCE, CARE, MAINTENANCE,
IMPROVEMENTS AND REPAIR

5l Lessee acknowledges that it has inspected the Leased Premises, conducted such
studies and tests thereof (including environmental tests) as it deems necessary, and accepts
possession of the Leased Premises "as is" in its present condition, and, subject to all limitations
imposed upon the use thereof by the rules and regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration,
the rules and regulations of the Airport, and by ordinances of the City, and admits its suitability
and sufficiency. Except as may otherwise be provided for herein, the City shall not be required to
maintain nor to make any improvements, repairs or restoration upon or to the Leased Premises or
to any of the improvements presently located thereon or placed thereon by Lessee.

52 Lessee shall, throughout the term of this Agreement, assume the entire
responsibility, cost, and expense for all repair and maintenance whatsoever on the Leased
Premises and all Improvements thereon, and shall perform in a good workmanlike manner all
necessary repairs, maintenance, whether ordinary or extraordinary, structural or otherwise.
Additionally, Lessee, without limiting the generality hereof, shall:

521 Keep at all times, in a clean and orderly condition and appearance, the
Leased Premises, all Improvements thereon and all of Lessee's fixtures, equipment and personal
property which are located on any part of the Leased Premises. Lessee shall not park or leave, or
allow to be parked, aircraft on the taxiways, ramps or pavement adjacent to any Hangar in a
manner which unduly interferes with or obstructs access to other hangars or movement on
adjacent taxiways.

522 Provide and maintain on the Leased Premises all obstruction lights and
similar devices, and safety equipment required by law.

523 Take measures to prevent erosion, including without limitation the
planting and replanting of grasses with respect to all portions of the Leased Premises not paved
or built upon. Lessee shall maintain and replant any landscaped areas.

524 Be responsible for the maintenance and repair of all utility services lines
placed on the Leased Premises and used by Lessee exclusively, including without limitation water
lines, gas lines, electrical power and telephone conduits and lines. sanitary sewers and storm
Sewers.

525 If Lessee discovers any hazardous material on the Leased Premises. it
will promptly notify the City inwriting.

526 [f extraordinary repairs or maintenance to the Improvements are required
during the last five years of the Initial Term or any Extended Term of this Agreement, Lessee
may elect not to repair and/or maintain the Improvements, by giving the City written notice of its
election. In such case. City shall have the option of requiring Lessee to either (a) clear the site.
remove all debris and paving, stub up all utilities. and restore the site to its original cleared



condition prior to commencement of construction; or (b) transfer title to the [mprovements to the
City, as is. Upon Lessee's election and compliance with this section, the City shall terminate this
Agreement and relieve Lessee of all future rental obligations hereunder.

527  During the last five years of the Initial Term, and during the last 30 months
of any Extended Term, the City shall have the right to conduct periodic detailed inspections of
the Leased Premises not more often than once per year. If any maintenance deficiencies are
discovered, the City may require Lessee to corvect such deficiencies, whether ordinary or capital
in nature. Capital items having a useful estimated life beyond the date on which Lessee actually

vacates the Leased Premises shall be reimbursed by the City to the Lessee on an equitably pro-
rated basis.

53 Plans and specifications for each of the Improvements and all repairs (other
than emergency repairs), construction, alterations, modifications, additions or repiacements to the
Improvements, including those made to any paving upon the Leased Premises, excluding non-
structural repairs, construction, alterations, modifications, additions or replacements,, shall be
submitted to the City for approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably denied,
providing the plans and specifications comply with the provisions of this Agreement, the
Airport’s design standards, if any, as well as all applicable building, use and zoning regulations.
Submiittal of the above described Plans and Specifications shall also include a site plan, drainage
plan, and building plan for the initial project development that shall be reviewed pursuant to the
City’s standard review process as provided in the Unified Development Code. The site plan shall
show the location of all Improvements on the Leased Premises, including the Hangars, pavements,
utilities and tocation of the Hangars on the site. The drainage plan must show how drainage will
be handled and be approved by the City prior to a building permit being issued by the City. Lessee
shall reimburse the City for all costs incurred for providing a legal survey and legal description
of the Leased Premises and for a proportional share of any costs to bring road access and utilities
to the Leased Premises, should the City agree to do so. Before commencement of any construction
of the Improvements, Lessee shall have the Leased Premises staked by a certified surveying
company to ensure ail Improvements are place accurately on the Leased Premises. Within ninety
(90) days of the certificate of occupancy being received, Lessee shall submit to the City a full set
of as-built record drawings of the Iinprovements, seafcd by a licensed architect or engineer, which
among other things, depicts exact locations of all Improvements, including utilities, made on
and/or off of the Leased Premises. Failure to submit such sealed plans shall constitute grounds
for dental of access to the Leased Premises.

ARTICLE 6: ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE

6.1 Lessee shall conduct its operations in an orderly and proper manner, considering
the nature of such operations, so as not to unreasonably annoy, disturb, endanger or offend others.

62 Further, Lessee shall take all reasonable measures:

621 To reduce to a practicable minimum vibrations tending to damage any
equipment, structure, buildings or portions of buildings.

622 Not to produce or aliow to be produced on the Airport, through the
operation of machinery or equipment. any electrical. electronic or other disturbances that interfere
with the operation by the City or the Federal Aviation Adnministration of air navigational.

8

/Z‘Dl



communication or flight equipment on the Airport or on aircratt using the Airport, or with ground
transportation communications.

6.3 Lessee shall comply with al! federal, state and municipal laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and requirements, the Airport’s Minimum Standards, Airport security rules and
regulations, and other Airport Rules and regulations, as they now exist or may hereafter be
amended or promulgated.

64 Lessee shall commit no nuisance, waste or injury on the Leased Premises, and
shall not do, or permit to be done, anything that may result in the creation, commission or
maintenance of such nuisance, waste or injury on the Leased Premises.

65 Lessee shall neither do nor permit anything which may interfere with the
effectiveness or accessibility of the drainage system, sewerage systemn, fire protection System,
sprinkler system, alarm system and fire hydrants and hoses, if any, installed or located on the
Leased Premises.

66  Lessee shall take measures to insure security in compliance with Federal Aviation
Administration Regulations and the Airport Security Plan, as they now exist or may hereafter be
amended or promulgated.

6.7 Lessee shall neither do nor permit any act or thing which will invalidate or
conflict with any fire insurance policies or regulations applicable to the Leased Premises or other
contiguous premises at the Airport.

6.8 Lessee shall not install, maintain, operate or permit the installation,
maintenance or operation of any restaurant, kitchen, stand or other establishment of any type for
the sale of food or of any vending machines or device designed to dispense or sell merchandise
or services of any kind to the general public, unless all required development approvals and
permits for that activity are first obtained from the City.

6.9 Except for uses permitted under Article 3 hereof to be performed by Lessee,
Lessee shall not provide or allow to be provided aircraft maintenance work. flight instruction of
any sort, air taxi, aircraft charter or aircraft leasing of any sort on the Leased Premises, for
commercial purposes, without all required development approvals, and a License from the City
if and as required by the Airport’s Minimum Standards or Rules then in effect.

6.10 Lessee will conduct its operations in such a manner as to keep the noise
produced by aircraft engines and component parts thereof, and any other noise, to a minimum, by
such methods as are practicable. considering the extent and type of the operations of Lessee

202



and the limitations of federal law. In addition, Lessee will employ the maximum amount of noise
arresting and noise reducing devices that are available and economically practicable, considering
the extent of their operations, but in no event less than those devices required by federal, state or
local law. In its use of the Leased Premises, Lessee shall take all possible care, exercise caution,
and use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize prop or jet blast interference and prevent jet
blast damage to aircraft operating on taxiways and to buildings, structures and roadways,
now located on or which in the future may be located on areas adjacent to the Leased Premises.
If the City determines that Lessee has not curbed the prop or jet blast interference or damage,
Lessee covenants to erect and maintain at its own expense such structure or structures as may be
necessary to prevent prop or jet blast interference, subject, however, to the prior written approval
of the City as 1o type, manner and method of construction.

611 Following the completion of construction of the Hangars, Lessee shall not store
nor permit the storage of disabled aircraft or any equipment or materials outside of the Hangars
constructed on the Leased Premises, without the written approval of the City. No aircraft that is
unairworthy may remain outside of a hangar for more than 20 days. Concerning any aircraft that
has remained outside the hangars on the Leased Premises for more than 20 days, upon request
Lessee shall provide written certification from an FAA licensee holding Inspection Authorization
stating such aircraft is airworthy. If Lessee fails to comply with this requirement after a written
request by Lessee to comply, Lessor may (but is not required to) cause the removal of any such
aircraft at Lessee’s expense by any means that Lessor determines, in its sole discretion, to be in
Lessor's best interests,

6.12 On forms and at the frequency prescribed by the Airport Manager, and with
respect to each aircraft stored on the Leased Premises, Lessee shall provide the City with the (a}
make and model. (b) N-number, and (c}) identity and address of the registered owner. This
requirement shalt apply to aircraft whether owned by Lessee or another party, and regardless of
whether its storage is subject to the Minimum Standards or Rules.

6.13  Permits and Licenses. Lessee shall obtain and maintain in current status all permits
and licenses required under any law or regulation. If Lessee receives notice from any
governmental entity that Lessee lacks, or is in violation of, any such permit or license, Lessee
shall provide City with timely written notice of the same.

6.14  Taxesand Liens. Lessee shall pay (beforc their respective due dates) ali taxes. fees.
assessments, and levies that relate to Lessee's use. occupancy. or operations at the Leased
Premises or the Airport, and all other obligations for which a lien may be created thereto
(including. but not limited to. utility charges and work for any improvements).

615  Damage to Property and Notice of Harm. In addition to Lessee's indemnification
obligations set forth in this Agreement, Lessee, at Lessee’s sole cost, shall repair or replace (to
Lessor's reasonable satisfaction) any damaged property that belongs to Lessor or Lessor's other
tenants to the extent that such damage arises from or relates to an act or omission of Lessee or
Lessee’s Associates, Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor of any such property damage. [f Lessee
discovers any other potential claims or losses that may affect Lessor, Lessee shall promptly notify
Lessor of the same.

6.16  Security. [cssee shall comply with all security measures that Lessor. the United

10

2.0

N






City, their officers, employees and agents, and all their respective successors and assi gns, of and
from any and all claims, demands, or causes of action which Lessee or its authorized subtenants
may now or at any time hereafter have against any of the foregoing, arising or alleged to arise out
of the closing of any street, roadway or other area, provided that other reasonable means of access
to the Leased Premises remain available to Lessee without cost to Lessee, unless otherwise
mandated by emergency safety considerations or lawful exercise of the police power. Lessee shall
not do or permit anything to be done which will interfere with the free access and passage of
others to space adjacent to the Leased Premises or in any streets or roadways on the Airport.

ARTICLE 8: CASUALTY INSURANCE AND DAMAGE
TO THE LEASED PREMISES

gl Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall procure and maintain throughout the
term of this Agreement insurance protection for all risk coverage on the Improvements which are
part of the Leased Premises, to the extent of one hundred percent (100%) of the actual replacement
cost thereof. Such insurance shall be written by insurers acceptable to the City. The insurance
shall provide for 30 days notice of cancellation or material change, by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to the City, Attention: Airport Manager.

8.1.1 The above-stated property insurance shall be for the benefit and to
safeguard the interests of the Lessee and City, which shall at all times be named a co-insured.

812 If any losses are estimated to exceed one-third of the current value of the
Leased Premises, Lessor shall adjust and settle such losses with the insurers. Lessee shall consult
with the City and use its best efforts to obtain a settlement that covers the cost of repairing or
rebuilding the Improvements.

813 Lessee shall provide certificates of insurance, in a form acceptable to the
City and marked "premium paid,” evidencing existence of all insurance required to be maintained
prior to occupancy of the Improvements. Upon the failure of Lessee to maintain such insurance
as above provided, the City, at its option, may obtain such insurance (which may be single-
interest) and charge the cost to Lessee as Additional Rent, which shall be payable on demand, or
may give notice of default hereunder pursuant to Article 18 hereof.

82 [f the Improvements and any subsequent improvements, insurable or
uninsurable, on the Leased Premises are damaged or destroyed to the extent that they are unusable
by Lessee for the purposes for which they were used prior to such damage, or same are destroyed,
Lessee shall promptly repair and reconstruct the Improvements substantially as they were
immediately prior to such casualty or in a new or modified design, subject to the provisions of
Article 5 hereof and applicable building codes and Airport design standards. if any, existing at
the time of repairing or rebuilding. If the aforesaid damage or destruction occurs in the last five
years of the Initial term or any option term of this Agreement, Lessee may elect not to repair and
reconstruct the Improvements, subject to the following terms and conditions:

Q






which Lessee herein agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless, the City shail notify
Lessee of such claim and in the event that Lessee does not settle or compromise such claim,
then Lessee shall undertake the legal defense of such claim on behalf of Lessee and the City.
It is specifically agreed, however, that the City at its own cost and expense, may participate
in the legal defense of any such claim. Any final judgment rendered against the City for
any cause for which Lessee is liable hereunder shall be conclusive against Lessee as to
liability and amount upon the expiration of the time for appcal.

93 Lessee shall procure and keep in force during the term of this Agreement policies
of Comprehensive General Liability insurance insuring Lessee and the City, as co-insureds,
against any liability for personal injury, bodily injury, death, or property damage arising out of
the subject of this Agreement with a combined single limit of at least two miltion dollars. No such
policies shall be cancelable or subject to reduction in coverage limits or other modification except
after 30 days prior written notice to the City. The policies shall be for the mutual and joint benefit
and protection of Lessee and the City, and such policies shall contain a provision that the City,
although named as an insured, shall nevertheless be entitled to recovery under said policies for
any loss occasioned to it, its servants, agents, citizens, and employees by reason of negligence of
Lessee (i.e. a fellow-insured write-back endorsement). Lessee shall provide certificates of
insurance, in a form acceptable to the City and marked "premium paid” evidencing existence of
all insurance required to be maintained prior to the commencement of the Agreement.

%4 Lessee represents that it is the owner of or fully authorized to use any and all
services, processes, machines, articles, marks, names or slogans used by it in its operations under
or in any way connected with this Agreement. Lessee agrees to save and hold the City, their
officers, employees, agents and representatives free and harmless of and from any loss, liability,
expense, suit or claim for damages in connection with any actual or alleged infringement of any
patent, trademark or copyright, or arising from any alleged or actual unfair competition or other
similar claim arising out of the operations of Lessee under or in any way connected with this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 10: LEASEHOLD MORTGAGES

101 If Lessce shall execute a Leasehold Mortgage of its leasehold estate to an entity
which is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by, or is not under common ownership or
control with Lessee (collectively, an “Unaffiliated Entity” hereafter), and if the holder of such
Leasehold Mortgage shall provide the City with notice of such Leasehold Mortgage together with
a true copy of such Leaschold Mortgage and the name and address of the Mortgagee. then
following receipt of such notice by the City, the provisions of this Article 10 shall apply in respect
to such Leasehold Mortgage.

102 The term "Leaschold Mortgage" as used in this Agreement shall include. but not
be limnited to, a mortgage, a deed of trust, a deed to secure debt, or other security instrument by
which Lessee's leasehold estate is mortgaged. conveyed, assigned. or otherwise transferred, to

secure a debt or other obligation, in connection with the construction contemplated by Article 4
above,

207






agrees that in the event of any failure on the part of Lessee to comply with each and every one of
the covenants and obligations hereof, or in the event of any default continuing for twenty days of
any specified nature, after notification to Lessee by City in writing, City may take possession of
and sell the same in any manner provided by law and may credit the net proceeds upon any
indebtedness due or damage sustained by City, without prejudice to further claims thereafter to
arise under the terms hereof. Any Leasehold Mortgage shall be subordinate to this contractual
Landlord Lien and any statutory lien arising under the Texas Property Code. but shall be superior
to the extent of such liens of any structures and fixtures on the Leased Premises.

ARTICLE 11: RULES AND REGULATIONS

Lessee acknowledges that the City has adopted rules and regulations (the *Rules™) with
respect to the occupancy and use of the Airport, and such Rules may be amended, supplemented
or re-enacted from time to time by the City provided that such Rules apply generally to all similar
occupants and users on the Airport. Lessee agrees to observe and obey any and all such Rules and
all other federal, state and municipal rules, regulations and laws and to require its officers, agents,
employees, subtenants, contractors, and suppliers, to observe and obey the same. In the event of
a conflict between the provisions of Airport Rules and this Agreement, the more stringent
provisions shall control. This provision will include compliance with any Airport Noise
Abatement Plan that may hereafter be adopted. The City reserves the right to deny access to the
Alrport and its facilities to any person, firm or corporation that fails or refuses to obey and comply
with such rules, regulations or laws

ARTICLE 12: SIGNS

Lessee shall have the right to install and maintain one or more signs on the Leased
Premises identifying it and its operations. The subject matter, type, design, number, location and
elevation of such signs, and whether lighted or unlighted, shall be subject to the Airport design
standards, if any. No sign will be allowed that may be confusing to aircraft pilots or automobile
drivers or other iraffic.

ARTICLE 13: ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE

The prior written consent of the City shall be required for any sale, transfer, assignment
or sublease of this Agreement and of the leasehold estatc hereby created. Additionally, such action
shall be subject to a twenty percent (20%) transfer fee based on the lease amount due that year.
Consent may be withheld by the City if (a) Lessee is in default of any of the terms or conditions
of this Agreement, (b) the transferee or assignee does not deliver to the C 1ty its written agreement
to be bound by all of the provisions of this Agreement in a form satisfactory to the City, or {c) the
transferee or assignee docs not submit proof of insurance as required at Articles 8 and 9. Lessee
shall not subdivide or fractionalize either its ownership of the Improvements or leasehold interest
in the Leased Premises. Any management agreement or other contract that purports to transfer
the substantive economic or legal risks and benefits to a third party shall be deemed a de facto
assignment, and shall be subject to the restrictions set forth in this Article 13.

Ih



ARTICLE 14: CONDEMNATION

141 If all or any portion of the Leased Premises is taken for any public or quasi-
public purpose by amy lawful power or authority by the exercise of the right of appropriation,
condemnation or eminent domain (or pursuant to a sale to such power or authority under the threat
of condemnation or eminent domain), all rentals payable hereunder with respect to that portion of
the Leased Premises taken shall no longer be payable, and the proceeds, if any, from such taking
or sale shall be allocated between the City and Lessee in accordance with the applicable
condemnation law, with Lessee being entitled to compensation for the fair market value of the
leasehold interest, Improvements and personal property taken. If a portion of the Leased Premises
1s so taken or sold, and as a result thereof, the remaining part cannot reasonably be used to
continue the authorized uses set forth in Article 3 hereof, then this Agreement shatl terminate at
Lessee’s election, and Lessee's obligation to pay rent and perfonn the other conditions of the lease
shall be deemed to have ceased as of the date of such taking or sale.

142 The City expressly reserves the right to grant or take easements on rights-of-way
across the Leased Premises if it is determined to be in the best interest of the City to do so. If the
City grant or take an easement or right-of-way across any of the Leased Premises, Lessee shall
be entitled only to compensation for damages to all Improvements owned by Lessee destroyed or
physically damaged thereby, but not to damages for loss of use of the Leased Premises itself.
Damages to improvements shall be determined by the reduction in fair market value of the
Improvements caused by said damage or cost of repair, whichever is less.

143 Lessee understands and agrees that the City have the right to take all or any
portion of the Leased Premises, and any additions, alterations or improvements thereon, should
the City, in their sole discretion, determine that said portion of the Leased Premises, and
improvements thereon, are required for other Airport purposes, without initiating condemnation
proceedings. If such action is taken, the City shall substitute comparable areas within the Airport,
or any additions or extensions thereof, brought to the same level of improvement as the area taken.
The City shall bear all expenses of bringing the substituted area to the same level of improvement
to the area taken, and of moving Lessee's improvements, equipment, furniture and fixtures to the
substituted area. If any of Lessee's improvements, equipment, furniture or fixtures cannot be
retocated, the City shall replace, at their own expense, such non-relocatable improvements and
other property with comparable property in the substituted area, and the City shall be deemed the
owner of the non-relocated improvements and other property, free and clear of all claims of any
interest or title therein by Lessee, any mortgagee, or any other third party whomsoever. It is the
specific intent of this subparagraph that Lessee would be placed, to the extent possible, in the
same position it would have been, had the City not substituted new premises for the Leased
Premises; provided however, that the City shall not be obligated to reimburse Lessee for lost
revenues or other costs duc to such substitution. In the event that such substitution of area is
demanded by the City, Lessee shall have the right and option to terminate this Agreement, prior
to the City commencing the substitution, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to City, in
which event the City shall pay Lessee the fair market value of all

RO



Improvements constructed on the Leased Premises pursuant to approval of the City. Nothing in
this subparagraph shall be construed to limit the City' rights to condemn Lessee's leasehold rights
and tnterests in the Leased Premises pursuant to state law.

ARTICLE 15: NON-DISCRIMINATION

151 Lessee, for itself, its heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, docs hereby covenant and agree as a covenant
running with the land that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated
on the Leased Premises, for a purpose for which a United States government program or activity
is extended, Lessee shall maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all
other requirements imposed pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in federally-
assisted programs of the Department of Transportation- Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, and as said regulations may be amended.

152 Lessee, for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest and assigns,
as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with
the land that:

1521 No person on the grounds of race, color, disability or national origin shall
be excluded from participating in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in the use of the Leased Premises;

1522 That in the construction of any Improvements on, over or under such land
and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, disability or
national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be
subjected to discrimination;

1523 That Lessee shall use the Leased Premises in compliance with all other
requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Sccretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in federally-
assisted programs of the Department of Transportation Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, and as said regulations may be amended.

153 In this connection, the City reserve the right to take whatever action they might
be entitled by law to take in order to enforce this provision following the 60 days written notice
to Lessee of any alleged violation. This provision is to be considered as a covenant on the part of
Lessee, a breach of which, continuing afier notice by the City to cease and desist and afier a
determination that a violation exists made in accordance with the procedures and appeals provided
by law. will constitute a material breach of this Agreement and will entitle the City, at their option,
to exercise its right of termination as provided for herein, or take any action that it deems
necessary to enforce compliance herewith.



154 Lessee shall include the foregoing provisions in every agreement or concession
pursuant to which any person or persons, other than Lessee, operates any facility at the Leased
Premises providing service to the public and shall include thereon a provision granting the City a
right to take such action as the United States may direct to enforce such covenant.

ARTICLE 16: GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

16.1  Lessee shall procure all licenses, certificates, permits or other authorization from
all governmental authorities, if any, having jurisdiction over Lessee's operations at the Leased
Premises which may be necessary for Lessee's operations on the Airport.

16.2 Lessee shall pay all taxes, license, certification, permits and examination fees
and excise taxes which may be assessed, levied, exacted or imposed on the Leased Premises or
operation hereunder or on the gross receipts or gross income to Lessee there from, and shall make
all applications, reports and returns required in connection therewith,

16.3 Lessee shall pay all water, sewer, utility and other applicable use taxes and fees,
arising from its occupancy and use of the Leased Premises and/or the Improvements thereon.

164 If the City is ever required to pay any of the foregoing, or is not paid any of the
foregoing, then the City may collect such sums as additional rent.

ARTICLE 17: REIGHTS OF ENTRY RESERVED

171 The City, by its officers, employees, agents, representatives and contractors,
shall have the right at all reasonable times to enter upon the Leased Premises and enter the
Improvements for all purposes not inconsistent with this Agreement, including without limitation
inspection and environmental testing, provided such action by the City does not
unreasonably interfere with Lessee's use, occupancy or security requirements. Except when
necessary for reasons of public safety or law enforcement, or for the protection of property, the
City shall provide 72 hours written notice of its intent to inspect.

172 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the City, by its officers,
employees, agents, representatives, contractors and furnishers of utilities and other services, shall
have the right, at its own expense, to maintain existing and future Atrport mechanical, electrical
and other utility systems and to enter upon the easements in the Leased Premises to make such
repairs. replacements or alterations as may be necessary or advisable, in the reasonable opinion
of the City, and from time to time to construct or install over. in or under existing easements
within the Leased Premises such systems or parts thereof and in connection with such
maintenance use the Leased Premises existing easements for access to other parts of the Airport
otherwise not conveniently accessible; provided, however, that in the exercise of such rights of
access, repair, alteration or new construction, the City shall not install a utility under or through
any building on the Leased Premnises or unreasonably interfere with the actual use and occupancy
of the Leased Premises by Lessee, all such utilities to be placed within existing easements, except
as provided in Article 14. Reservation of the aforesaid right by the City shall not impose or be
construed to impose upon the City any obligation o repair. replace

21t












purposes of Lessee under this Agreement, without affecting, altering or diminishing the
obligations of Lessee hereunder, provided that any structural changes shall not be at Lessee's
expense.

ARTICLE 23: NOTICES

Al Any notice, consent, approval or other communication given by either party to
the other relating to this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered in person, sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, sent by reputable overnight courier, or sent by facsimile
transmission (with evidence of such transmission received) to such other party at the respective
addresses set forth below (or at such other address as may be designated from time to time by
written notice given in the manner provided herein). Such notice shall, if hand delivered or
personally served, be effective immediately upon receipt. If sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested, such notice shall be deemed given on the third business day following deposit in the
United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed; if delivered by overnight courier,
notice shall be deemed effective on the first business day following deposit with such courier; and
if delivered by facsimile, notice shall be deemed effective when received. Notice to the City is
not effective unless sent concurrently to BOTH the City Attorney and the Airport Manager.

22 The notice addresses of the parties are as follows:

To the City: Airport Manager
Lockhart Municipal Airport

Telephone:

Messer, Fort & McDonald, PLLC
City Attorney for Lockhart, TX
13625 Pond Springs Road, Suite 204
Austin, TX 78729

Telephone: 512-600-2308

To Lessee: Lockhart Hangar Partners
10925 Signal Hill Rd
Austin, TX 78737

Telephene: (512)468-5030

Hb



ARTICLE 24: INVALID PROVISIONS

The invalidity of any provisions, articles, paragraphs, portions or clauses of this
Apreement shall have no effect upon the validity of any other part or portion hereof, so long as
the remainder shall constitute an enforceable agreement. Furthermore, in lieu of such invalid
provisions, articles, paragraphs, portions or clauses, there shall be added automatically as a part
of this Agreement, a provision as similar in terms to such invalid provision as may be possible
and be legal, valid and enforceable.

ARTICLE 25: MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

25.1 Remedies Nonexclusive. All remedies provided in this Agreement shall be
deemed cumulative and additional and not in lieu of, or exclusive of, each other, or of any other
remedy available to the City, or Lessee, at law or in equity, and the exercise of any remedy, or
the existence herein of other remedies or indemnities shall not prevent the exercise of any other
remedy provided that the City' remedies in the event of default shall not exceed those set forth in
this Agreement.

252 [ndividuals Not Liable. No director, officer, agent or employee of the City shall
be charged personaily or held contractually liable by or to the other party under any term or
provision of this Agreement or of any supplement, modification or amendment to this Agreement
because of any breach thereof. or because of his or their execution or attempted execution thereof.

253 Estoppel Certificate. At the request of Lessee in connection with an approved
assignment of its interest in this Agreement, the City shall execute and deliver a written statement
identifying itself as the Lessor under this Agreement and certifying such facts as may actuaily be
true.

254 Recording of Lease. This Agreement shall be recorded by the City, and the costs
of such recordation, and any closing costs associated with this Agreement. its execution and
recordation, shall be billed to and paid by Lessee as additional rent.

255 General Provisions.

255.1 This Agreement shall be performable and enforceable in Caldwell
County, Texas. and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Exclusive
jurisdiction and venue for all disputes between the parties shall lie in the state courts located
within Caldwell County, Texas. The parties waive right to trial by jury. The prevailing party in
any dispute arising under this Agreement shall recover its costs, all expenses. and attorney fees.

2552 This Agreement is made for the sole and exelusive benefit of the City and
Lessee, their successors and assigns, and is not made for the benefit of any third party.



2553  All oral and written communications between agents of the parties
preceding this Agreement, are deemed to be merged and integrated into this document, and the
parties disclaim reliance upon any such communications.

ARTICLE 26: SUBORDINATION CLAUSES
26.1  This Agreement is subject and subordinate to the following:

2611 The City reserves the right to develop and improve the Airport as
it sees fit, regardless of the desires or view of Lessee, and without interference or hindrance by or
on behalf of Lessee, provided Lessee is not deprived of the use or access to the Leased Premises
or any of Lessee's rights under this Agreement and unless said activities by the City shall result
in the loss of convenient access to the Leased Premises by motor vehicles and/or aircraft owned
or operated by Lessee or Lessee's assigns, subtenants, renters, agents, employees or invitees.

2612 The City reserves the right to take any action it considers
necessary to protect the aerial approaches to the Airport against obstruction, together with the
right to prevent Lessee from erecting or permitting to be erected any building or other structure
on the Airport which would limit the usefulness of the Airport or constitute a hazard to aircraft.

2613 This Agreement is and shall be subordinate to the provisicn of
existing and future agreements between the City and the United States or the State of Texas
relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may
be required as a condition precedent to the obtaining or expenditure of federal funds, services, or
property for the benefit of the Airport.

2614 During national emergency, the City shatl have the right to lease
all or any part of the landing area or of the airport to the United States or Texas National Guard
for military use, and if any such lease is executed, the provisions of this Agreement insofar as
they may be inconsistent with the provisions of such lease to the government, shall be suspended,
but such suspension shall not extend the term of this Agreement. Abatement of rentals shall be
reasonably determined by the City and Lessee in proportion to the degree of interference with
Lessee's use of the Leased Premises.

2615 Except 1o the extent required for the perforinance of any
obligations of Lessee hereunder, nothing contained in this Agreement shall grant to Lessee any
rights whatsoever in the airspace above the Leased Premises other than those reasonably
necessary to Lessee’s enjoyment ot the Leased Premises and City’s Airport facilities and which
are consistent with Federal Aviation Administration rules, regulations and orders currently or
subsequently effective. Further, Lessee's rights in airspace above the Leased Premises and the
Airport and the Airport facilities shall be not less than the rights therein by other users of the
Airport and Airport facilities.

(g
Ln

7%



ARTICLE 27: QUIET ENJOYMENT

The City covenants and warrants that it is the owner of the Leased Premises and that
Lessee upon payment of rentals herein provided for and performance of provisions on its part to
be performed, shall and may peacefully possess and enjoy the Leased Premises during the term
hereof and any extensions hereof without any interruption or disturbance.

ARTICLE 28: ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto and may be changed,
modified, discharged or extended by written instrument duly executed by the City and Lessee.
The parties agree that no representations or warranties shall be binding upon the City or Lessee
unless expressed in writing,

ARTICLE 29: REQUIREMENTS FOR CONDOMINIUMIZATION

This Agreement does not authorize Lessee to create either a common interest community
or hangar condominiums on the Leased Premises. If Lessee desires to create a common interest
community or hangar condominiums on the Leased Premises, a written amendment to this
Agreement shall be required, containing such additional terms as the City may reasonably require,
including but not necessarily limited to terms necessary for compliance with the Texas law.

ARTICLE 30: RETURN CONDITION OF THE LEASED PREMISES

At the expiration or termination of the Lease or any renewal term, Lessee shall surrender
promptly the leased premises and all structures in the same condition as when received or
constructed, ordinary wear and tear excepted, except to the extent caused by fire or Act of God
for which the Lessor has been previously compensated.

ARTICLE 31: HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

511 Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be used,
produced, stored, transported, brought upon, or released on, under, or about the Premises or the
Alrport by Tenant or Tenant’s Associates in violation of applicable federal, state, or local
environmental laws, regulations, and ordinances (“Environmental Laws”). Tenant is
responsible for any such violation as provided in this Agreement, and shall fully indemnify and
hold harmless the City from all fees. fines, costs and damages related in any manner to any
release of Hazardous Material or legal violation.

312 Tenant agrees that in the event of a release or threat of release of any
Hazardous Materjal by Tenant at the Airport, Tenant shall provide Lessor with prompt notice
of the same. Tenant shall respond to any such release or threat of release in accordance with
applicable Laws and Regulations. I[f Lessor has reasonable cause to believe that any such release
or threat of release has occurred, Lessor inay request, in writing, that Tenant conduct reasonable
testing and analysis (using qualified independent experts acceptable to Lessor) to show that
Tenant is complying with appticable Environmental Laws.

yat



Lessor may conduct the same at Tenant’s expense if Tenant fails to respond in a reasonable
manner. Tenant shall cease any or all of Tenant’s activities as Lessor determines necessary, in
its sole and absolute discretion, in connection with any investigation, cure, or remediation. If
Tenant violates any Environmeuntal Laws at the Airport (whether due to the release of a
Hazardous Material or otherwise), Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, shall have the following
obligations, which shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement: (i) promptly
remediate such violation in compliance with applicable Environmental Laws;

(ii) submit to Lessor a written remediation plan, and Lessor reserves the right to approve such
plan (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) and to review and inspect all work;
(iii) work with Lessor and other governmental authorities having jurisdiction in connection with
any violation; and (iv) promptly provide to Lessor copies of all documents pertaining to any
environmental concern that are not subject to Tenant’s attorney-client privilege.

513 To the extent that Tenant is a co-permittee with Lessor in connection with any
permit relating to the environment at the Airport, or to the extent that any of Tenant’s operations
in connection with this Agreement or otherwise may impact Lessor’s compliance with any such
permit, Tenant shall work cooperatively with Lessor and other tenants and take all actions
necessary to ensure permit compliance, and minimize the cost of such compliance, for the
benefit of Airportoperations.

314 Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement, and upon any change in
possession of the Premises authorized by Lessor, Tenant shall demonstrate to Lessor’s
reasonable satisfaction that Tenant has removed any Hazardous Materials and is in compliance
with applicable Environmental Laws. Such demonstration may include, but is not limited to,
independent analysis and testing to the extent that facts and circumstances warrant analysis and
testing, such as evidence of past violations or specific uses of the premises. The obligations of
this Article 31 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

Lew White. Mavor

ATTEST:

City Seccretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney



Lessor may conduct the same at Tenant’s expense if Tenant fails to respond in a reasonable
manner. Tenant shall cease any or all of Tenant’s activities as Lessor determines necessary,
in its sole and absolute discretion, in connection with any investigation, cure, or remediation,
If Tenant viclates any Environmental Laws at the Airport {whether due to the release of a
Hazardous Material or otherwise), Tenant, at Tenant’s cxpense, shall have the following
obligations, which shall swvive any expiration or termination of this Agreement: (1)
promptly remediate such violation in compliance with applicable Envirommental Laws:

(ii) submit to Lessor a written remediation plan, and Lessor reserves the right to avprove such
plan (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) and to review and inspect all
work; (iti) work with Lessor and other governmental authorities having jurisdiction in
connection with any violation; and (iv) promptly provide to Lessor copies of all
docutnents pertaining to any environmental concem that are not subject to Tenant’s attoruey-
client privilege.

313 To the extent that Tenant is a co-permittee with Lessor in connection with any
permit relating to the environment at the Airport, or io the extent that any of Tenant’s
operations in connection with this Agreement or otherwise may impact Fessor’s compliance
with any such permit, Tenant shall work cooperatively with Lessor and other tenants and
take all actions necessary to ensute permit compliance, and minimize the cost of such
compliance, for the benefit of Airport operations.

314 Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement, and upon any change in
possession of the Premises authorized by Lessor, Tenant shall demonstrate to Lessor’s
reasonable satisfaction that Tenant has removed any Hazardous Materials and is in
compliance with applicable Environmental Laws, Such demonsiration may inciude, but is
nat limited to, independent analysis and testing (o the extent that facts and circumstances
warrant analysis and testing, such as evidence of past violations or specific uses of the
premises. The obligations of this Auticle 31 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereta have executed this Agreement on the day
and year first above written,

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS ATTEST:

i_efv_-ivhite, Mayor City Secretary

LOCKHART HANGAR PARTNERS, LLC APPROVYED AS TO FORM:

A T

v =

Authorized Rgcnf Lockhart City Attorney

29













Arrears Snapshot

Total Utility Sales for F¥Y19-20

Exhibit “A”

§19,558,658

Total in Arrears due to Non-disconnects {6 mo.) 578,811
Percent of Arrears compared to total
Collections annual 0.4%
Total Utility customers 5500
Total customers in Arrears
120+ days 33
90 days 23
30-60 days 31
Percent of Arrears compared to total customers 1.6%

N7









2. Lffective immediately. a notice ol the requirement for facial coverings. in the [orm
attached. shall be posted in the City of Lockhart at the entrances to cach commercial
estabhishment or other conspicuous location sufficient to provide notice 1o employees
and visitors of the requirement lor facial coverings and other health and salety
requirements.

frd

The requirement that such nolice be posted shall remain in etfect until terminated or
amended by the City Council of Lockhart,

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the 1™ day of September 2020
CITY OF LOCKHART

S il

[xtv White. Mayor

ATTEST:

W(_LWUW (tﬁh‘ffﬂihf‘f 0

Connie Constancio. City Secretary
Approved as 10 form:

Monte Akers. City Attorne

2
Resolution 2020-20

223









fxecutive Order

BY THE
GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF TEXAS

LExecutive Department

Austin, Texas
July 2, 2020

EXECUTIVE ORDER
GA 29

Relating to the use of face coverings during the COVID-19 disaster.

WHEREAS, I, Greg Abboett, Governor of Texas, issued a disaster proclamation on March
13, 2020, certifying under Section 418.014 of the Texas Government Code that the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) poses an imminent threat of disaster for all counties in the
State of Texas; and

WHEREAS., in each subsequent month effective through today, [ have renewed the
disaster declaration for all Texas counties; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Texas Department of State Health Services
(DSHS}. Dr. Johin Hellerstedt, has determined that COVID-19 continues to represent a
public health disaster within the meaning of Chapter 81 of the Texas Health and Safety
Code: and

WHEREAS, [ have issued executive orders and suspensions of Texas laws in response to
COVID-19, aimed at using the least restrictive means available 10 protect the health and
safety of Texans and ensure an effeclive response to this disaster; and

WIHEREAS, as Texas reopens in the midst of COVID-19, increased spread is to be
expecied, and the key to controlling the spread and keeping Texans safe is for all people
to consistently follow good hygiene and social-distancing practices; and

WHEREAS, due to recent substantial increases in COVID- 19 positive cases, and
increases in the COVID-19 positivity rate and hospitalizations resulting from COVID-
19. further measures are needed to achieve the least restrictive means for reducing the
growing spread of COVID-19, and to avoid a need for more extreme measures; and

WHEREAS, 1 have joined the medical experts in consistently encouraging people (o use
face coverings, and health authorities have repeatedly emphasized that wearing face
coverings is one of the most important and effective wols for reducing the spread of
COVID-19: and

WIIERLAS, given the current status of COVID-19 in Texas, requiring the use ol face
coverings is a targeted response that can combat the threat 1o public health using the
least restrictive means, and if people foilow this requirement, more extreme megasures
may be avoided; and

WHEREAS, wearing a face covering is important not only to protect oneself, but also 1o
avoid unknowingly harming fellow Texans, especially given that many people who go
into public may have COVID- 19 without knowing it because they have no symptoms; and
FILED IN THE OFFIGE OF THE

RETARY QF STATE
SZE?: apphn D'CLOCK

JUL 02 2020

v



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-29

July 2, 2020

Page 2

WHEREAS, the "governor is responsible for meeting ... the dangers 1o the state and
people presented by disasters” under Section 418.8411 of the Texas Government Code,
and the legislature has given the governor broad authority to fulfill that responsibility,

and

WHEREAS, failure to comply with any executive order issued during the COVID-19
disaster is an offense punishable under Section 418.173 by tine;

NOW. THEREFORE, . Greg Abbott, Governor of Texas, by virtue of the power and
anthority vested in me by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, do hereby order
the following on a statewide basis effective at [2:01 p.m. on July 3, 2020«

Every person in Texas shall wear a face covering over the nose and mouth when
inside a commercial entity or other building or space open to the public, or when
in an outdoor public space, wherever it is not feasible to maintain six feet of social
distancing from another person not in the same household; provided, however,
that this face-covering requirgment does not apply to the following:

L

La

o

10,

L1

any person younger than [0 years of age;

any person with a medical condition or disability that prevents wearing a
face covering;

any person while the person is consuming food or drink, or 18 seated at a
restaurant 1o eat or drink;

sny person while the person is (a) exercising outdoors or engaging in
physical activity outdoors, and (b) maintaining a safe distance from other
people not in the sume houschold;

any persen while the person is driving alone or with passengers who are
part of the same household as the driver;

any person obtaining a service that requires temporary removal of the face
covering for security surveillance, screening, or a need for specific access
(o the face, such as while visiting a bank or while obtaining a personal-
care service involving the face. but only to the exient necessary for the
ternporary removal;

any person while the person is in a swimming pool, lake, or similar body
of water;

any person who s voling. assisting a voter, serving as 4 poll watcher, or
actively administering an election, but wearing a face covering is strongly
encouraged;

any person who is actively providing or oblaining access 1o religious
worship, hul wearing a fuce covering is strongly encouraged:

any person while the person is giving a speech for a broadeast or 1o an
audience: or

uny person in a county {a) that meets the requisite criteria pr(JIHtIEgﬁnIﬁLLrDE OFFICE OF THE

CRETARY CF STATE
SEQ 10 v O'CLOCK

JUL 02 2020



CGovernor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-29
Tuly 1. 2020 Page 3

the Texas Division of Emergency Management {TDEM) regarding
minimal cases of COVID-19. and (b) whose county judge has
aftirmalively opted-out of this face-covering requirement by filing with
TDEM the required face-covering atlestation form-—provided, however,
that wearing a tace covering is highly recommended, and every county is
strongly encouraged to follow these face-covering standards,

Not excepted from this face-covering requirement is any person attending a
protest or demonstration involving more than 10 people and who is not practicing
safe social dislancing of six feet from other people not in the same household.

TDEM shall maintain on its website a list of counties that are not subject 1o this
face-covering requirement pursuant (o paragraph number £1. The list can be
found at: www.tdem texas.gov/ga29.

Following a verbal or written warning for a first-time violator of this face-
covering requirement, a person’s second viclation shall be punishable by a fine
not to exceed $250. Each subsegquent violation shall be punishable by a fine not (0
exceed 5250 per violation.

Local law enforcement and other local officials, as appropriale, can and should
enforce this executive order, Executive Order GA-28, and other effective
execulive orders, as well as local restrictions that are consistent with this
executive order and other effective executive orders. But no law enforcement or
other official may detain, arrest, or confline in jail any person for a violation of this
cxecutive order or for related non-violent. non-felony offenses that are predicated
on 4 violation of this executive order: provided, however, that any olficiul with
authority to enforce this executive order may act to enforce trespassing laws and
remove violators at the requesl of a business establishment or other property
owner.

This executive order hereby prohibits confinement in jail as a penalty for the
violation of any face-covering order by any jurisdiction.

Executive Order GA-28 is hereby amended to delete from paragraph number 13
the phrase: . but no jurisdiction can impose a civil or criminal penalty for failure
to wear a (ace covering.”

The governor may hy proclamation amend this executive order or add to the list of
people 1o whom this tace-covering requirement does not apply.

This executive order does not supersede Executive Orders GA-10. GA-13. GA-17. GA-
19, GA-24. GA-25, GA-27, or GA-28 as amended. This executive order shall remain in
effect and 1 full force until modificd. amended, rescinded, or superseded by the
governor.

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

250 P4 0'CLOCK
JUL 02 2620

i

p



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-2%
July 2, 2020 Page 4

Given under my hamd this the 2nd
day of July, 2020

e 2 e

GREG ABBOTT
Governor

Y72

HUTH R. HUGHS
Secretary of State

FILED IN THE QFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY QF STATE

23067 O'CLOCK
JUL 6 2 2020



LIST OF BOARD/COMMISSION VACANCIES

Lpdated: Aoguse {3, 20240

Board Name Reappointments/Vacancies Council member

Board of Adjustment Onc Alternate position Any Councilmember J

APPLICATIONS RECEIVED TO BE ON A BOARD/COMMISSION

APPLICANT BOARD REQUESTED DATE RECEIVED RESIDENCE DISTRICT

Dennis McCown LHPC August 10, 2020 District 2

1** pick - Planning & Zoning

L
Anna Lowe 2 pick — LHPC

August 13, 2020 Caldwell County Resident










%z T

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

PAGE 3

Upduted 087132020

NOTES:
PARKS MASTER
PLAN STEERING

COMMITTEE

{Est. 09/05/2017)

Committee to have 8-10 members as follows:
* Councilmembers
e  City staff
¢ Two Parks Advisory Board members
s Business owners
» (ivic Organization members

Committee will assist Burditt Consultants to perform tasks outlined in the Parks Master Plan.

COMMITTEE — 5T.
PAUL UNITED
CHURCH OF

CHRIST PROPERTY

(Est. 09/05/2017)

Committee will consist of at least one appointment from Mayar and each Councilmember.

The Committee will make recommendations to the Council about the use of the property at 728 5. Main.

NOTES:
WAYFINDING
SIGNAGE AND
COMMUNITY

BRANDING

AD-HOC

{Est. 01/02/2018)

Committee will assist City Planner/Development Services with wayfinding signage and community branding tasks.

Committee will consist of up to five members appointed by the Council.
NOTE: First Branding and Wayfinding Committee disbanded/dissolved on December 18, 2018.

UPDATE: Second Branding and Wayfinding Committee appointed on March 5, 2019.










lh T

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

PAGE 6 Updated 08/13/2020

District 3 — Kara McGregor Airport Board Ray Chandler 02/06/18
Board of Adjustment Anne Clark, Vice-Chair 12/19/17

Kirk Smith {Alternate) 12/05/17

Construction Board Jerry West, Vice-Chair 01/02/18

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Lew White, Chair [2/19/17

Eco Dev. Corp. ¥ Cent Sales Tax Sally Daniel 06/18/19

Electric Board John Voigt 09/03/19

Historical Preservation Ronda Reagan 12/19/17

Library Board Jean Clark TFox, Chair 12/19/17

Parks and Recreation Warren Burnett 12/05/17

Planning & Zoning Philip McBride, Chair 12/19/17

District 4 - Jettry Michelson Airport Board Mark Brown, Vice-Chair 03/07/17
Board ol Adjustment Wayne Reeder 12/05/17

Construction Board Rick Winnett [2/05/17

Ceo Dev. Revolving Loan Frank Coggins 12/05/17

Eco Dev. Corp. /2 Cent Sales Tax Morris Alexander 12/05/17

Electric Board lan Stowe (03/06/18

Historical Preservation Michel Royal 07/07/20

Library Board Donaly Brice 12/05/17

Parks and Recreation Russell Wheeler 12/05/17

Planning & Zoning Rick Arnic 01/15/19

Mayor Pro-Tem (At-Large) - | Airport Board Andrew Reyces 01/07/20
Angie Gonzales-Sanchez Board of Adjustment Laura Cling, Chair 01/07/20
Construction Board Paul Martincz 01/07/20

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Irene Yanez. 01/07/20

Eco Dev. Corp. Y2 Cent Sales Tax | Alfredo Munoz 01/07/20

Historical Preservation Ray Ramscy 07/07/20

Library Board Jodi King 01/07/20

Parks and Recreation Chris Schexnayder 03/07/17

Planning & Zoning Philip Ruiz, Vice-Chair 01/07/20




M

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

PAGE 7 Updated 08/13/2020
At-Large - Brad Westmoreland | Airport Board Jayson “Tex” Cordova 02/04/20
Board of Adjustment Severo Castillo 02/04/20
Construction Board (Alternate) | Gary Shafer 02/04/20
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Ldward Strayer 02/04/20
Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax | Frank Estrada 02/04/20
Historical Prescrvation Richard Thomson 02/04/20
Library Board Rebecca Lockhart 02/04/20
Parks and Recreation [Dennis Placke 02/04/20
Planning & Zoning Brad Lingvai 02/04/20

Charter Review Commission
(Five member commission)

Term
appointment

24  months after

Ray Sanders
Bill Hemandez
Roland Velvin
Elizabeth Raxter
Alan Fielder

03/01/16 — Michelson
03/01/16 — Michelson
03/01/16 — Michelson
3/01/16 — Hilburn
03/15/16 -- Hilburn

Sign Review Committee

{no longer meeting)

Gabe Medina
Neto Madrigal
Terry Black
Kenneth Sneed

Johnny Barron, Jr.
Tim Clark

03/17/15 - Mayor Pro-Tem Sancher
(4/21/15 - Councilmember Mendoza
12/19/17- Councilimember McGregor
03/17/15  Mayor White

03/17/15 - Councilmember Castilio
03/17/15- Councilmember Michelson |

Parks Master  Plan

Steering

Committee (8-10 members)

Albert Villalapando
Dennis Placke

Nita McBride
Rehecca Pulliam
Bernie Rangel
Derrick David Bryant
Beverly Anderson
Carl Ohlendorf
Beverly Hill

09/05/17 - Parks Bd appointee
09/05/17 — Parks Bd appointee
12/05/17- McGregor
09/19/17— Micheison

09/19/17 — Castillo

09/19/17 - Sanchez

09/19/17 - Mcndoza

09/19/17 — Westmoreland
09/19/17 — Mayor White




COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 8 Updated 08/13/2020

eht

Church Property Ad-hoc | Amelia Smith 09/05/17 — Westmoreland
Committee {7 members) Jackie Westmoreland 09/05/17 — Westmorcland
Todd Blomerth 09/05/17 — Mayor White
Andy Govea 09/1917 — Sanchez
Terry Black 12/19/17 — McGregor
Jane Brown 09/19/17 — Michelson
Raymond DeLcon 09/20/17 — Castillo
Dyral Thomas 09/22/17 - Mendoza
Wayfinding Signage and | Roy Watson (03/05/19
Community Branding Ad-Hoc¢ | Ronda Reagan 03/05/19
Committee (5 members) Sally Daniel 03/05/19
Rob Ortiz 03/05/19
THIS COMMITTEE WAS - [ Bobby Herzog 03/05/19
RE-ESTABLISHED ON Appointed by Mayor wilh
MARCH 5, 2019 consensus of Council
HOT Advisory Bd Ray Sanders All members  appointed by
Alfrcdo Munoz consensus of the Council on
Archana *Archie” Gandhi 12/03/2019
Roxanne Rix
Steve Lewis and Pam Larison
Sally Daniel {Alternate)
o Janct Grigar (Alternate)




City of Lockhart

2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Prepared by:



City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities
City of Lockhart

Summary

On January 17 & 18, 2020 the City of Lockhart hosted two half-day planning sessions to develop goals and strategies for the next 2 years.

Some of these goal areas were internal, whereas others were external. The following is the process used to reach the conclusions for the plan.

The process began with a preliminary phone meeting between the facilitator and Steve Lewis, City Manager, to go over key issues facing the

City, understand the programs and projects underway through the community, and to prepare the agenda and format for the planning retreat.

The first portion of the strategic planning process began on Friday, January 17, 2020 with the City Manager and the City of Lockhart
Management Team. The facilitator began by asking the Management Team participants what their expectations for discussion for the day
were. She then conducted a group brainstorm exercise called Start/Stop/Continue that lists the things that need to begin happening, stop

happening, and are mission-critical and must continue regardless of circumstances.

The facilitator then guided the Management Team through 2020-2021 goal and strategy development to recommend to the City Council the
following day.

On Saturday, January 18, 2020, the City Council and City Manager convened to review, revise, and establish priorities related to the
recommendations generated the day before by the Management Team. Prior to the review, the facilitator asked the City Council to list their

expectations for discussion for the day.

The following are the results.



Holistic view of the City

Understanding other departments better

Council to continue to be open to new ideas

As the city grows, facilities and staff must keep up
Next comprehensive master plan

Establish an IT 3-5-year plan to keep current

Replace phone systems and phone equipment

Discuss records storage

What is there for teens and tweens to do?

Need administrative assistance

Public Information Officer — keep information on point,
factual, and streamlining voice: sharing voice vs. many

voices

Improve work environment for staff

Accomplish unfinished business from last strategic plan
142 & I-130 development

Low-hanging fruit and larger longer-term goals
Eliminate the red tape

Look ahead to see what’s next

Balance citizen needs and staff needs

City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Management Team Expectations for the Day’s Discussion Topics

Law enforcement: recruitment and administrative
assistance

Stick to implementing plan

Fire equipment replacement plan and funding

Achieve “needs” so we can work on “wants” for the future
Customer service needs additional staff — same staffing
level as 1000 accounts ago

Technology training needed in Library (provide for public)
Additional Library storage needed

Electric services study needed and replace needed items
Salary and compensation study to begin soon — want

council to support and fund the results of the study

City Council Expectations for the Day’s Discussion Topics

Keep on track

Prepare for quality growth
Neighborhood beautification

City Hall facilities

Discuss hospital/after-hours clinic

Hear staff recommendations



City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Start/Stop/Continue

The facilitator guided the Management Team through an exercise that challenged them to brainstorm things that the City really needed to
begin doing, what they should stop doing that could be a waste of resources, and what must they continue doing, regardless of circumstances.
Below are their responses. Note that there are no right or wrong items; these are merely individuals’ opinions about the things that should and

shouldn’t change in Lockhart. Just because one person has a certain opinion on a topic, that does not imply anyone else shared that opinion.

Start

e Long-term street paving plan (paving/resurfacing)

e Electrical system study

e Formal grantsmanship program

e Records storage facility

e Digitize public works and utility records/maps

e Establish fee schedule for fire plan reviews and inspections

e Review development related fees

e Improve customer service at Police Department and Utilities Department by increasing administrative staff
e Start a Main Street Program

e New City facilities (abolish sewer smell)

e Consider a 4-day/10-hour work week option

e Annual review of facility maintenance, i.e. HVAC systems, etc.

e Make Parks Department into Parks and Recreation Department (start recreation program)
e Review and fund vehicle replacement fund

e Expand/improve airport facilities

e Figuring out how to generate more general fund revenues to pay for items on this “start” list



Stop

Printing reports — use digital reports when we can

The waste in Archives

Excessive paperwork related to personnel (consider paper reduction techniques instead)
Making new employees wait 6 months to take time off/sick days/etc (other cities do 3 months)
Excessive engine idling of city vehicles

Worrying about other departments and focus on making your own team better

Picking up commercial recycling for free

Hanging highway banners for free

Circulating city council department head reports monthly (do quarterly instead)

Workshop portion of council meetings unless needed (they run too long)

Referencing the past as “we have always done it that way” (we can be more innovative)

City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities



City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Continue

e Effective communication with customers/website

¢ Planning for the future

e Maintaining hiring standards

e Improving community amenities finding external funding sources

e Succession planning and cross-training

e Staff meetings

e Learning new ways of doing things

e Employee longevity and retention efforts

e Good customer service

e Acknowledging staff accomplishments

e (Great teamwork

e Parks improvements/parks master plan

e Efforts on wayfinding program

e Replacing aged power lines

¢ Planning and engineering for downtown paving and drainage improvements
e Providing utilities to areas of anticipated future growth and development
¢ Planning for future industrial parks

e Accreditation for Police and Fire Departments



City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Recommendations from Staff:

The following items were recommendations from staff to city council. Items that have a checkbox (R) had agreement of city council the

following day. The one item with no checkbox was rolled to consideration for 2022.

=

Create and adopt 5-7-year paving/resurfacing plan (roads and sidewalks)

=

Lockhart Police Department to conduct Active Shooter training for all City staff and elected officials and review official safety
procedures for council meetings

Explore asking the county for grant writer assistance

Establish fee schedule for fire plan reviews and inspections

Considering increasing existing fees for applications and development fees

Develop an Airport Business Plan

Research options for additional records storage

Transition staff department reports from monthly to quarterly

Pursue agenda management process and software

U N RN ANNN

Streamline paper processes where possible/evaluate software options
o Utility billing
0 Applications
0 Council, boards, commissions:
= Packets

= Minutes



City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Goal Development from City Council:

The following items were items identified by council to move forward on for 2020-2021:

e Establish a Hospital with an Emergency Room in town

e Sell church property

e Create resources via Lockhart EDC for proactive outreach to quality builders for additional housing
e Create a Youth Advisory Board to explore options around youth programs/activities
e Adopt a TIF (tax increment financing) policy prior to project being submitted

e Implement downtown drainage improvements

e Develop fiber down 142, 183, and the Central Business District

e Traffic safety improvements: turn lanes and traffic lights

e Consider submitting a multi-year street bond program to voters

e Begin TXDOT safety projects

e Promote a Neighborhood Watch Program

e Promote beautification projects through teamwork

e C(Clean up trash/enforcement

e Enhance lower income districts/beautification efforts



City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Progress Reporting

The following icons are used to document progress of the following goals and strategies:

= Completed

= On Target or In Progress

= Not on Target

Goal 1: Economic Development / Planning

Strategies 2019-2020 Progress 2020-2021 Progress
1. Continue to partner with LISD and local youth organizations to /
encourage careers in local emergency services (Fire and Police) (O) Partner with Boy Scouts

to develop Police Explorer
Program. Fire personnel attend
and participate in LISD career

days.

2. Better collaborate with downtown stakeholders and both Chambers x

of Commerce
3. Complete updating our development ordinances C/
Revised Engineering

Standards — presented to
Council January 2020.
Subdivision Regulations to
follow.




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

4. Consider development tools to facilitate attraction / recruitment to
SH 130 corridor

@
IEDC business park

development study completed.
Future consideration by LEDC.

5. Bring utilities, assist assembling parcels, rezoning tracts along SH
130/142 and become shovel-ready

@
Mostly done. Site

development will facilitate the
remainder.

6. Pursue prospects and developers and create a BRE (business
retention and expansion) program

@
Hiring a second

Economic Development
practitioner.

7. Start investing in more property for growth

@
IEDC study.

8. Explore next industrial park

@
IEDC study.

9. HOT (Hotel Occupancy Tax) Funds — board to develop and adopt
new process to collect payments from B&Bs

@
HOT Advisory Board

created. Board training and

funding processes under review.

10. Adopt and implement the Economic Development Strategic Plan
(currently underway by Garner Economics) by Q4 2020

@ LEDC Board hired

Garner Economics January
2020

11. Robust LEDC website

@ Underway with EDsuite

contract.

12. Create resources via Lockhart EDC for proactive outreach to quality
builders for additional housing

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

10




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies 2019-2020 Progress 2020-2021 Progress

13. Adopt a TIF (tax increment financing) policy prior to project being N/A Brand new/created in 2020

submitted

14. Develop fiber down 142, 183, and the Central Business District N/A Brand new/created in 2020

Goal #1 KPIs / Metrics:

Did we partner with LISD & other youth organizations to encourage emergency services careers?
Did we collaborate with downtown stakeholders and both Chambers of Commerce?
Did we completely update our development ordinances?

Did we brainstorm development tools for SH-130 development?

Did we bring utilities and assemble parcels along SH-130?

Did we develop shovel-ready development sites?

Did we market those sites to prospective investors?

Did we develop plans for our next industrial park?

Did we revamp the way HOT funds are structured?

Did we develop and implement an Economic Development Strategic Plan?

Did the Lockhart EDC revamp their website to better attract investment?

# of quality home builders the Lockhart EDC proactively reached out to in 2020-2021?
U Did we adopt a new TIF policy?

# of miles of new fiber optics laid in Lockhart in 2020-2021?

(WY Y I Iy Iy oy By Iy I

11




Goal 2: Quality of Life / Quality of Facilities

City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

. Invest money to improve the appearance of our town (streets, parks,
entry signs)

@ Doubled street

resurfacing funds in FY 20;
Parks Master Plan projects.

. Conduct and implement a Space Study of City Buildings and
facilities including City Hall

@ Budget established for

FY 20 Space Study. RFP under
development.

. Improve the image of City facilities as needed and conduct cosmetic
improvements in the meantime

@ See No. 2 above.

. Update, renovate, and construct City facilities as needed, based on
the space study. Realize that remodel of Central Fire Station is likely
next.

@ Electrical panel upgrade

at the Water Treatment Plant;
Budget established for FY 20
Space Study; Fire Station No. 2
completed.

. Implement the Parks Master Plan, improving the quality of life for
the community. What is in Phase 2: splash pad, restroom renovations,
dog park, picnic shelter upgrades, and tree planting initiatives

\/ Multiple Phase I projects
underway.

. Conduct a citywide quality of life citizen survey and ask council to
fund.

XAllocate funds in FY 20-
21; assign project to PIO.

. Establish a Hospital with an Emergency Room in town

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

Sell church property

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

Create a Youth Advisory Board to explore options around youth
programs/activities

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

10. Implement downtown drainage improvements

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

12




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies 2019-2020 Progress 2020-2021 Progress
11. Consider submitting a multi-year street bond program to voters N/A Brand new/created in 2020
12. Promote beautification projects through teamwork N/A Brand new/created in 2020
13. Clean up trash/enforcement citywide N/A Brand new/created in 2020
14. Enhance lower income districts with beautification efforts N/A Brand new/created in 2020

Goal #2 KPIs / Metrics:

$ amount invested in streets in 2019? $
$ amount invested in parks in 2019? $

$ amount invested in gateway entry signs in 2019? $
$ amount invested in streets in 2020? $
$ amount invested in parks in 2020? $

$ amount invested in gateway entry signs in 2020? $
Which facilities did we improve the image of?

U Did we implement elements of the Parks Master Plan?

U Did we secure quotes on a Space Study of City buildings including City Hall?

# of City-owned buildings we renovated or retrofitted?

Did we conduct a citywide quality of life citizen survey?

Did we address levels of service based on the citizen responses we received?

Did we address levels of satisfaction based on the citizen responses we received?
Did we address areas for improvement based on the citizen responses we received?
Did we court hospital providers?

Did we sell the church property?

Did we create a Youth Advisory Board?

Did we implement downtown drainage improvements?

Did we fully investigate issuing a street bond?

Did we fully enforce trash clean up around town?

Did we specifically target lower income neighborhoods for new beautification projects?

[ Iy Iy I Iy Iy

13



Goal 3: Staffing / Personnel

City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

1. Consider hiring additional personnel (engineer, IT, etc.)

@ In FY 20, staffing levels

were increased by 2 full-time
and 1 part-time positions.

2. Conduct a staffing study that includes evaluating efficiencies and
compensation

@ Classification and

Compensation Study underway.

3. Right size staffing levels city-wide based on study results

XNO funding was allocated
for such a study; discuss
need/timing of study during FY
20-21 budget process.

4. Consider starting salaries that compete with surrounding
communities

@ Classification and

Compensation Study underway.

5. Be consistent with staff development / policies / purchasing
procedures

@
Comprehensive

Purchasing Policy under
development (anticipated to be
complete 1% quarter of 2020).
Revision of City Personnel
Policy underway.

6. Implement a staff development program (be consistent)

XHouse Bill 3834 mandated
cybersecurity training for all
employees with computer
access and elected officials —
cybersecurity training program
underway.

14




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

7. Start developing / preparing current staff to take on leadership roles
within the organization in the future. Work on succession planning:
add Fire, add Electric, add Streets, and add Animal Control.

@ Emphasis on leadership

training for police personnel,
cross training of job duties
underway in Finance
Department.

8. Recruit and attract more bi-lingual staff

XNO funding was allocated
to recruit bi-lingual staff;
explore possible options during
FY 20-21 budget process and
the classification and
compensation study.

9. Customer service / experience excellence training for the Utility and
Planning Development teams

@ Training budgeted item

in FY 20 for Utility Customer
Services staff.

Goal #3 KPIs / Metrics:

# of new positions in 2019?
# of new positions in 2020 and 2021?
Did we perform a staffing efficiency/compensation study?

Did we right-size our salaries based on that study by the end of 20207

Did we begin grooming current staff for future leadership roles?
How many staff do we have on a leadership track by the end of 2020?
# of new employees added in 2019 through 2021 who are bilingual?

(I IR W Iy Iy Oy Wy

Did we develop new consistent policies and procedures regarding professional development of staff?
Did we develop new consistent policies and procedures regarding purchasing/procurement?
Did we create and implement a new staff development program to ensure everyone has training opportunities?

U Did we deliver Customer Experience Excellence training to every City employee?

15




Goal 4: Procedures / I'T Management and Services

City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

1. Improve technology / create specific strategies to have better IT
support based on Assessment results

@ New outside IT

management team hired;
Strategic plan for current and
emerging issues (cyber) near
completion.

2. Upgrade all technology-related issues as recommended — desktops,
servers, software, equipment, and peripherals. $100K will pay for
equipment, $20K is licensing agreement costs.

@ City-wide replacement of

desktops with current operating
systems complete; new servers
in current fiscal year.

3. Create a 5-year rolling IT equipment replacement plan

@ See above notes 1 and 2.

4. Provide superior service by keeping technology up to date and being
able to communicate with the public (keep an open line of
communication through website.) Purchase next modules: INCODE

@ New PIO hired.

Increased social media updates.
INCODE permits and
inspections software module
implemented to track permit
and inspections progress; online
access to permit applications
and tracking underway.

5. Upgrade the server system

@
Desktop operating

systems upgrade 100%
complete. Server upgrades in
progress.

6. Streamline technology hardware, software processes within the City,
based on Assessment recommendations

@
Ongoing and FY 20-21.

16




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies 2019-2020 Progress 2020-2021 Progress
7. Upgrade all equipment and software and be trained on specific /
software to be used to maximum potential and determine which staff (O) C
. . ! . urrent year 2020
will require which trainings. d
epartmental goal.
. Explore impl ti t i-Fi
8. Explore implementing downtown Wi-Fi XTO be addressed in 2020 or
2021. Explore options with the
Downtown Business
Association and both
Chambers of Commerce.
Goal #4 KPIs / Metrics:

U Did we secure top quality technology support across all departments by the end of 2020?

Q

Did we upgrade our desktop computers?

% of employees who received upgraded computers by the end of 2020 (from 2018 numbers)?

(I IR N WOy Ny )y Wy Wy

Did we upgrade our servers?

Did we upgrade our computer software, subscriptions, and licenses?
Did we upgrade our peripherals?

Did we upgrade our other technology equipment?

Did we establish an IT policy for updates and replacements that will keep us up-to-date from now through the future?

Did we upgrade our City server system?
Did we streamline our City technology processes?

Did we secure training for staff to use all new equipment properly and efficiently?

Did we investigate implementing WiFi throughout Downtown Lockhart?

17




Goal 5: Public Safety

City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

1. Provide quality public safety to all citizens of Lockhart

a. Develop a specific Retention Strategy first

@ City-wide classification

and compensation study
underway.

Fire: Council approved 7%
salary adjustment in FY 19-20.
Police: all officers to attend
leadership training, host
ceremonial recognition events,
retention strategy under
development.

b. Continue to implement hiring strategies we developed such as Fire
and Police.

@ Fire: Use of recruitment

video; developing recruitment
flyer for use with LISD and the
public; career day with
Lockhart High School students;
Fire Chief to serve on LISD
Career and Technical Education
Advisory Committee.

Police: In 2019, Lockhart
Police Officers visited with
police cadets attending the
AACOG Academy and made
presentations to 2 classes of
prospective candidates. In 1%
quarter of 2020, LPD will make
presentations to the CAPCOG
Academy currently in progress.

18




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

. Long-term public safety facility planning for Station #1.

@ Completed Fire Station

No. 2. Analysis and cost
estimate to remodel and
upgrade Fire Station No. 1
underway.

. Develop an equipment replacement schedule. Seek funding for
existing equipment (fire apparatus and patrol cars) replacements.

@ Developed an ambulance

replacement schedule with
Caldwell County and Seton.
Upgrades to two-way radios
(portables and mobiles)
underway.

Continue to ensure use of best practices / standards (research best
practices, then implement)

@ Fire: Fire Department is

preparing an emergency
management tabletop exercise
for City staff. Police:
Upgraded Police Officer body-
worn cameras to 3™ generation
models.

Evaluate Accreditation opportunities

@
Fire: Reviewing the

Texas Fire Chief’s Association
(TFCA) accreditation process
before formal enrollment.
Police: Currently reviewing the
166 Texas Law Enforcement
Best Practices. Will submit for
recognition in the 3™ quarter of
2020.

19




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Strategies

2019-2020 Progress

2020-2021 Progress

g. Traffic safety improvements: turn lanes and traffic lights

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

h. Begin TXDOT safety projects

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

i.  Promote a Neighborhood Watch Program

N/A Brand new/created in 2020

Goal #5 KPIs / Metrics:

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 2019?

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 2020?

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 2021?

% law enforcement officers retained? %
# of new firefighters hired in 2019?

# of new firefighters hired in 20207

# of new firefighters hired in 20217

% firefighters retained? %

Did we implement that new replacement schedule?

Did we begin the TXDOT safety projects?

(IR Iy Iy Iy Iy Iy Iy Iy

Did we develop a long-term public safety facilities plan?
Did we develop a public safety equipment replacement schedule?

Did we research and record best practices across the country regarding public safety policy?
Did we make any modifications to our public safety policies based on that research?

Did we explore and evaluate Accreditation opportunities?

Did we implement new turn lane and traffic light improvements in 2020-2021?

Did we proactively promote a Neighborhood Watch Program for Lockhart?

20




City of Lockhart 2020-2021 Strategic Priorities

Conclusion

At the end of the planning retreat, the facilitator reminded all the participants that these goals would only be achieved if they held true to their

commitments today to implement these specific strategies and tactics.

She reminded them that they are one team working toward one vision. The city council and management team agreed to use this document

regularly throughout 2020 and 2021 to track progress and measure accomplishments.

P.O. Box 50101 Austin, TX 78763 | ph 512.963.2263
www.OpportunityStrategies.com | alysia@opportunitystrategies.com

21



City of Lockhart

2019-2020 Strategic Priorities

Prepared by:



City of Lockhart

Summary

On February 1 & 2, 2019 the City of Lockhart hosted two half-day planning sessions to develop goals and strategies for the next 2 years.

Some of these goal areas were internal, whereas others were external. The following is the process used to reach the conclusions for the plan.

The process began with a preliminary phone meeting between the facilitator and Steve Lewis, City Manager, to go over key issues facing the

City, understand the programs and projects underway through the community, and to prepare the agenda and format for the planning retreat.

The first portion of the strategic planning process began on Friday, February 1, 2019 with the City Manager and the City of Lockhart
Management Team. The facilitator began by asking the Management Team participants what their expectations for discussion for the day
were. She then took the team through a SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, & Threats) Analysis. The next group exercise was a
brainstorm called Start/Stop/Continue that lists the things that need to begin happening, stop happening, and are mission-critical and must

continue regardless of circumstances.

The facilitator then guided the Management Team through 2019-2020 goal and strategy development to recommend to the City Council the
following day.

On Saturday, February 2, 2019, the City Council and City Manager convened to review, revise, and establish priorities related to the
recommendations generated the day before by the Management Team. Prior to the review, the facilitator asked the City Council to list their

expectations for discussion for the day.

The following are the results.



Management Team Expectations for the Day’s Discussion Topics

That City Council will take what we say seriously
Consider all staff in decisions
Hear each other’s goals

Live by the plans we create / develop

That Council develop goals / priorities based on sound data

/ research
Focus

Consider quality of life as over-arching goal

Discuss business attraction vs. recruitment

Being prepared for growth

Facilities improvements

Facilities maintenance

How do we give back to those who need extra help?
Smart land use practices

Discuss Tourists/Tourism — what is there for kids to do

while in town visiting family?

City Council Expectations for the Day’s Discussion Topics

Capitalize on Tourism

Discuss Wi-Fi

Capitalize on BBQ Capital of Texas

Cleaning up of unsightly properties (residential)

Work in unity today

Serve our community

Focus

To discuss Economic Development targeting technology

jobs

Industrial Park is full — now what?

Cleaning up of City properties / facilities
Actually implement our goals

Discuss the direction of Economic Development
Think bigger / think change / embrace change
Develop our identity

Attractive gateway signage

Employee wages

Technology infrastructure



SWOT Analysis

The facilitator guided the participants through an analysis of their current Strengths, the current Weaknesses or Challenges they are facing,

Opportunities that may come their way in the future, and Threats that are possible to occur in the future. Note that there are no right or wrong

answers here and no implication of likelihood. This is simply a brainstorm of the opinions of the participants to get them thinking about goals

in the next portion. The Management Team listed their responses first, then the City Council added additional items the following day.

Strengths

e Historic district

e County seat

e BBQ Capital of Texas

e Location to highways

e Tourism

e Small town (family-oriented)
e Growing — room for more

e Desire to manage growth

e Good development process

e Proximity to Austin

e Comparable housing prices

e Existing capacity of utilities
e Easy mobility

e Economic Development Sales tax
e Clark Library

e Baker Theatre

Ease of developing land (flat)

Employees who experience long tenure
Volunteers

CTR (Chisholm Trail Roundup) & other local events
Community support

Recognizable court house

Movies / film production (TFC)

Long-term water planning

High-level financial planning

Competitive building / development fees
“Real” city with well-managed growth

New energy

Proximity to large cities / airport

New residents — new ideas — changing priorities
Diversity

First Friday Downtown Event



Weaknesses / Challenges

Incentives — Economic Development lack of use
Technology — aging equipment and software
Infrastructure
Facilities — condition / maintenance
Competitive salaries within region
Training opportunities

0 Professional development

0 Budget
Closed minds — have always done it this way
Tourism
Managing growth
Need for succession planning
Public perception influencing job applicant pool

Weak tax base

Limited in-town post-secondary educational opportunities

Lack of retail
Lack of entertainment (kids)

Limited grocery options

City-owned property
College
Venue / convention center
Lack of hotels
Entryways to community
Not using TIF financing
Emerging downtown organization
How to effectively support increasing, ever-growing
number of festivals
0 Create packages for vendors and festivals
No city recreation programs
In-kind services
Very limited public transportation services
Outdated web information

Poor communication with citizens



Opportunities

Expand airport (hangars)
0 Install AWOS (Automated Weather Observing
System)
Improve working conditions of employees
Proximity to Austin
Implement first phase of parks master plan
SH-130 has great properties but not city-owned property
Undeveloped lots on Square and north / northwest of
Square
Long-tenured elected leadership
Increase community involvement
To develop positive relationship with County, School, and
organizations
Quality economic growth
Franchise recreational or entertainment venues (theaters,
bowling, outlets, concerts, water parks)
Community college campus
Increased communication needed with ISD for school

planning, infrastructure, etc.

Expand walking / biking opportunities for exercise and
community involvement

Lockhart Springs (natural spring)

Lockhart State Park transfer to City

Potential residential development around golf course
Development within historic district

School district growth

Housing growth

Business growth

St. Paul Church and other redevelopment opportunities
Hospital / medical facilities

Public bathrooms downtown

Develop Industrial Park

More involvement with San Marcos Greater Partnership
Partnership with Austin Chamber

EDC $ will go further today than in 2 years (spec buildings,
parking)



Threats

Economic recession

Voter turnout

Government shutdown
Citizen input

Natural disaster

Leadership in government
Lack of economic development direction
Competition from other cities
Lack of resources

Building maintenance
Technology — cyber security
Surging population
Infrastructure improvement

Maintaining reputation

Planning without follow through

Lack of educated workforce — skilled labor

Crime

Lack of workforce — people
Retention and hiring

Y outh retention

School quality

Lack of industry

Lack of racial unity
Micro-managing

Other utilities providers

Homeless services — transportation

Types of future growth



Start/Stop/Continue

The facilitator guided the Management Team through an exercise that challenged them to brainstorm things that the City really needed to
begin doing, what they should stop doing that could be a waste of resources, and what must they continue doing, regardless of circumstances.
Below are their responses. Note that there are no right or wrong items; these are merely individuals’ opinions about the things that should and

shouldn’t change in Lockhart. Just because one person has a certain opinion on a topic, that does not imply anyone else shared that opinion.

Start

e Space allocation study

e Renovate City buildings — construct

e Downtown bathrooms

e Improve salaries — salary survey

e Staff development program / policies / procedures

e Consistency in purchasing
0 Revamp purchasing policy

e Replacing capital equipment / vehicles — vehicle fund

e Mandatory single stream recycling

e IT department, in-house City Engineer

e New technology in terms of equipment, network, server, software

e Re-assess who is in charge of downtown redevelopment
0 Name which entity (or entities) funds downtown redevelopment initiatives
0 Name which entity (or entities) manages downtown redevelopment initiatives

e 2020 Comprehensive Master Plan Update that includes a future land use plan and map



Stop

e In-house utility billing (consider outsourcing)

e Outsourcing IT (consider bringing in-house)

e Repetitive useless paperwork (paperwork/policies must be updated and streamlined)
¢ Increasing overtime in fire and police (hire more to fix this issue)

e Using outdated equipment

e Hand -picking collections of recycled goods (business pick up)

e Laying asphalt driveway approaches for “free”

e Demolition of condemned houses — stop doing in-house (needs to be outsourced)



Continue

e Meeting with County, City, School, Chamber, EDC
e Implementing 2020 Plan and Updates

e Attracting businesses — growth

e Providing superior service

e Redeveloping Downtown

e Implement Parks Master Plan

e Being a great place to work

e Public investments along SH-130

e Supporting festivals / movie projects

e Financial planning

e Embracing tourism

10



Goal 1: Economic Development / Planning

Strategies

1. Partner with LISD and local youth organizations to encourage careers in local emergency services (Fire and Police)
2. Reassess who is in charge of managing and funding downtown development and tourism
3. Attract a post-secondary education campus / facility
4. Complete updating our development ordinances
5. Consider development tools to facilitate attraction / recruitment to SH 130 corridor
6. Bring utilities, assist assembling parcels, rezoning tracts along SH 130

a) Shovel ready

b) Pursue prospects
7. Start investing in more property for growth
8. Explore next industrial park
9. HOT (Hotel Occupancy Tax) Funds — revamp structure

10. Economic Development Strategic Plan

11. Robust LEDC website

11



Goal #1 KPIs / Metrics:

U

WD Iy Ny oy Ay Iy I [y My I

Did we partner with LISD & other youth organizations to encourage emergency services careers?
Did we reassess downtown development and tourism initiatives and who leads each?

Did we initiate efforts to attract a post-secondary educational institution or facility to Lockhart?
Did we completely update our development ordinances?

Did we brainstorm development tools for SH-130 development?

Did we bring utilities and assemble parcels along SH-130?

Did we develop shovel-ready development sites?

Did we market those sites to prospective investors?

Did we develop plans for our next industrial park?

Did we revamp the way HOT funds are structured?

Did we develop and implement an Economic Development Strategic Plan?

Did the Lockhart EDC revamp their website to better attract investment?

12



Goal 2: Quality of Life / Quality of Facilities

Strategies

1. Invest money to improve the appearance of our town (streets, parks, entry signs)

2. Conduct a Space Study of City Buildings and facilities including City Hall
3. Improve the image of City facilities as needed
4. Update, renovate, and construct City facilities as needed
5. Implement the Parks Master Plan, improving the quality of life for community
6. Conduct a citywide quality of life citizen survey
Goal #2 KPIs / Metrics:

$ amount invested in streets in 2019 and 2020? $

$ amount invested in parks in 2019 and 2020? $
$ amount invested in gateway entry signs in 2019 and 2020? $

# of City facilities we improved the appearance of?

Q

UO000D000O0

Which facilities did we improve the image of?

Did we implement elements of the Parks Master Plan?

Did we secure quotes on a Space Study of City buildings including City Hall?
How many City-owned buildings did we renovate or retrofit?

Did we conduct a citywide quality of life citizen survey?

Did we address levels of service based on the citizen responses we received?
Did we address levels of satisfaction based on the citizen responses we received?

Did we address areas for improvement based on the citizen responses we received?

13



Goal 3: Staffing / Personnel

Strategies

[u—

Consider hiring additional personnel (engineer, IT, etc.)

Conduct a staffing study that includes evaluating efficiencies and compensations

Right size staffing levels city-wide based on study results

Consider starting salaries that compete with surrounding communities

Be consistent with staff development / policies / purchasing procedures

Implement a staff development program (be consistent)

Start developing / preparing current staff to take on leadership roles within the organization in the future

Bi-lingual staff

e I I Tl Il B ol B

Customer service / experience excellence training

Goal #3 KPIs / Metrics:

# of new positions in 2019 and 2020?

Q

U 0000

Q

Did we perform a staffing efficiency/compensation study?

Did we right-size our salaries based on that study by the end of 20207

Did we develop new consistent policies and procedures regarding professional development of staff?

Did we develop new consistent policies and procedures regarding purchasing/procurement?

Did we create and implement a new staff development program to ensure everyone has training opportunities?
Did we begin grooming current staff for future leadership roles?

How many staff do we have on a leadership track by the end of 2020?

# of new employees added in 2019 and 2020 who are bilingual?

Q

Did we deliver Customer Experience Excellence training to every City employee?

14



Goal 4: Procedures / IT / Software and Hardware

Strategies

1. Conduct a Technology Assessment that yields specific recommendations

Improve technology / create specific strategies to have better IT support based on Assessment results

Upgrade all technology-related issues as recommended — desktops, servers, software, equipment, and peripherals

Start replacing old equipment

Rkl Bl Bl

Provide superior service by keeping technology up to date and being able to communicate with the public (keep an open line of
communication through website)

Carefully weigh all the pros and cons of considering bringing IT in-house

Upgrade the operating system

Streamline technology hardware, software processes within the City, based on Assessment recommendations

0| o N o

Upgrade all equipment and software and be trained on specific software to be used to maximum potential

10. Explore implementing downtown Wi-Fi

15



Goal #4 KPIs / Metrics:

U Did we conduct a Technology Assessment?

U Did we secure top quality technology support across all departments by the end of 2020?

U Did we upgrade our desktop computers?

% of employees who received upgraded computers by the end of 2020 (from 2018 numbers)?

U Did we upgrade our servers?

Did we upgrade our computer software, subscriptions, and licenses?

Did we upgrade our peripherals?

Did we upgrade our other technology equipment?

Did we establish an IT policy for updates and replacements that will keep us up-to-date from now through the future?
Did we carefully weigh all the pros and cons of keeping IT outsourced vs. bringing it in-house?
Did we upgrade our City operating system?

Did we streamline our City technology processes?

Did we secure training for staff to use all new equipment properly and efficiently?

(WD Iy Iy Iy Ny N Ny My I

Did we investigate implementing WiFi throughout Downtown Lockhart?

16



Goal 5: Public Safety

Strategies

1. Provide quality public safety to all citizens of Lockhart

a)

Develop a specific Retention Strategy first

b)

Develop a specific Hiring Strategy

c)

Long-term public safety facility planning

d)

Develop an equipment replacement schedule

e)

Ensure use of best practices / standards (research best practices, then implement)

f)

Evaluate Accreditation opportunities

Goal #5 KPIs / Metrics:

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 2019?

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 2020?

% law enforcement officers retained?
# of new firefighters hired in 2019?
# of new firefighters hired in 20207

% firefighters retained?

Q

U 0000

Did we develop a long-term public safety facilities plan?

Did we develop a public safety equipment replacement schedule?

Did we implement that new replacement schedule?

Did we research and record best practices across the country regarding public safety policy?
Did we make any modifications to our public safety policies based on that research?

Did we explore and evaluate Accreditation opportunities?

17



Conclusion

At the end of the planning retreat, the facilitator reminded all the participants that these goals would only be achieved if they held true to their

commitments today to implement these specific strategies and tactics.

She reminded them that they are one team working toward one vision. The participants agreed to use this document regularly throughout 2019

and 2020 to track progress and measure accomplishments.

P.O. Box 50101 Austin, TX 78763 | ph 512.963.2263
www.OpportunityStrategies.com | alysia@opportunitystrategies.com

18















SUGGESTED FUNDING

™M PRIORITY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 18-19: SORTED 8Y CATEGORY SOURCE BY SORTED BY
INITIALS # FINAL LIST 8Y COUNCIL PRIORITIZED BY CATEGORY: SUBMIT TO CITY MGR BY MARCH 1 PLEASE COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing, Brighter Lighting in
Neighborhoods GF [nfrastructure
Angled parking for N Main and N Commerce Streets {change during downtown project) In-House Parking Downtown
Parking around and surrounding the square. [ssues with larger vehicles parked in areas that are narrow and that make it hard
to see oncoming traffic. Qur city is growing and we have been very fortunate with our parking however, it is a concern
especially when you have the bigger and wider trucks that are parked in an area that is for a moderate size car. It becomes a
hazard and a blind spot when trying to reverse out of the parking space and ablind spot for any and all pedestrians. GF Parking Downtown
Continue to work on City Park improvements Gen Fund Parks
Revive all City parks Grants Parks
Work with LISD to establish a community recreation center at Adams Gym, perhaps under Parks (PUBLIC HEALTH/PARKS)  |General Fund/Parks & Rec |Parks
Add 3 positions to the Parks Department, to help facilitate other impro {PARKS) General Fund/Parks & Rec | Parks
Park improvements - consider medium to long range Town branch development GF Parks
Develop a dog park as part of the Stueve Lane Monte Vista Tract [PARKS/ANIMAL SHELTER/PUBLIC HEALTH) General Fund/Parks & Rec _|Parks
Parks Improvemens: Purchase and update the park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all to use. GF Parks
Start Planning for 2040 plan GF Planning
Police GF Police
Continued Police Community committee involvement, neighborhood watch, gang awareness GF Police
Work with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program Gen Fund Police
_Get back to Neighborhool Townhall Meetings GF Police
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds for a Police Task Force, a Narcotics Officer and a Mental Health Officer to address any
drug and gang related problems and mental issues our city is being faced not only on the East side of our city but citywide.
Budget for updated training for our police officers. There is alot of training that is free but alot additonal money for
registration fees and course material. | am gratefu! that the Police Department did invest in our Drug Dog and is being utilizied
by the school as well. GF Police
High School cadet programs for police, fire, EMS GF Police/Fire
Public relations position to deal with social media GF Public Relations
|Get the word outabout Lockhart (promoting, hiring a Public Relations person) Gen Fund Public Relations
Sidewalk repair and expansion GF Sidewalks
Signage in Lockhart (highway, downtown, and tol! road) Gen Fund Signage
Wavfinding, branding - develop new entry sign and city property markers GF Signage
Move Forward with St Paul property project In-House St Paul Gift
Devlop an oral history project to support a future “Walking Tour" app for Lockhart (ECONOMIC DEV/DOWNTOWN} General Fund/Fundraising | Tourism
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Restaurants). Added events,
especially the events thatare free to the public do very well for the city as well as for the businesses and tourism. [ welcome
new events to the city but need to be selective in the events that we do host.
. GF Tourisn
Create a Good Neighbor program (Lockhart Utility Customers can add an additional amount to utility bill to help others) GF Utility Customers




SUGGESTED FUNDING
™ PRIORITY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 18-19: SORTED BY CATEGORY SOURCE BY SORTED BY
INITIALS # FINAL LIST BY COUNCIL PRIORITIZED BY CATEGORY: SUBMIT TO CITY MGR BY MARCH 1 PLEASE COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
Access to Municipal Court for Utility Payments In-House Gtility Customers
Free public wifi on the square as part of the redevelopment on the North side (ECONOMIC DEV/DOWNTOWN) {CAPCOG Grant? Wifi
Free public wifi on the square as part of the redevelopment on the North side |GF Wifi ‘]










SUGGESTED FUNDING
™ PRIORITY SOURCE BY SORTED BY
INITIALS # GOALS IDENTIFIED 6Y COUNCIL FOR FY 18-19: SORTED BY CATEGORY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY CITY MANAGER COMMENTS
For streets please see above. Brighter lighting is always a
challenge in a city with so many trees. Lockhart still must
| comply with Senate Bill 5 which regulates power usage.
Several cities have passed an ordinance that does not allow
for the planting of trees within 15 of the right of way to
[nfrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, improve lighting of streets and reduce tree trimming around
AGS 3 Completion of Curbing, Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods _IGF Infrastructure power lines. o
Scheduled with downtown improvements. Should also
consider making 100 Blocks of N Main ard N Commerce one-
Angled parking for N Main and N Commerce Streets (change during way and possibly consider other blocks downtowr especially
BW 4 downtown project) In-House Parking Downtown Inorth(south streets.
Parking around and surrounding the square. Issues with larger vehicles
parked in areas that are narrow and that make it hard to see oncoming
traffic. Our city is growing and we have been very fortunate with our
parking however, it is a concern especially when you have the bigger and
wider trucks that are parked in an area that is for 2 moderate size car. [t
becomes a hazard and a blind spot when trying to reverse out of the
AGS 10 1Erking space and a blind spot for ary and all pedestrians. GF Parking Downtown |Scheduled with downtown improvements
J1EFF M 2 Continue to work on City Park improvements Gen Fund Parks Master Plan near complete
BW 2 Revive all City parks Grants Parks Master Plan near complete
Work with LISD to establish a community recreation center at Adams General Fund/Parks &
KM 2 Gym, perhaps under Parks (PUBLIC HEALTH /PARKS) Rec Parks Mayor is visiting with LISD about this
Add 3 positions to the Parks Department, to help facilitate other General Fund/Parks & Approx. $100,000 to budget rot including equipment and
KM 3 improvements (PARKS| Rec Parks vehicles
Parkimp ts - consider medium to long range Town branch
Lw 3 development GF Parks Bond issue needed
Develop a dog park as part of the Stueve Lane Monte Vista Tract General Fund/Parks & Estimate on this property is $ 25000 using used fencing.
KM 4 (PARKS/ANIMAL SHELTER/PUBLIC HEALTH) Rec Parks Main and insurance are also cost factors
Parks Improvements: Purchase and update the park equipment Lo provide
AGS 8 safe and fun filled parks for all to use. GF Parks Master Plan near complete
JUAN M 3 Start Planning for 2040 plan GF Planning Needs to be done
Chief Pedraza is working on these issues. Recently issued
1C 3 Police GF Police update that was sent to Council.
c d Police C. ity ¢ i invol neighborhood
Lw 4 watch, gang awareness GF Police See above
|EFF M 4 lWo:—k with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program Gen Fund Police Seeabove
UANM 5 lﬁet back to Neighborhood Townhall Meetings GF Police Will get with Chiefabout this

8:56 AMU:\Vance Files\1A Public Works|City CounciliGoals and Objectives\FY 18-1\COUNCIL COMBINED €Y 18-19 Goak






LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL |PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
with GF Expiring debt saving
BH 3 Continue Improving City Cemetery and/or Cemetery Tax CEMETERY
Jeff M 2 |Refurbish City Hall in the inside (to make more inviting to the public) as well as doing some CITY BLDGS
landscaping outside
BW 3 |Spruce up and clean up City properies CITY BLDGS
BH 4 (Improve City Facilities Appearance General Fund CITY BLDGS
JC 4 |City Facilities CITY BLDGS
AGS 10 |[Convention Center CONVENTION CTR
JC 2 Crime CRIME
AGS 4 Police Task Force: Budget extra funds for a Police Task Force, a Narcotics Officer and a Mental CRIME
Health Officer to address any drug and gang related problems and mental issues our city is
being faced not only on the East side of our city but citywide. Budget for updated training for
our police officers. There is alot of training that is free but alot additonal money for
registration fees and course material.
Jeff M 4 |Work with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program CRIME
LW 8 [Fund for helping utility customers in need ?7?? CUSTOMER SERV
BW 2 |Continue to change angle parking downtown: 200 Blk S Main, 100 Blk N Main, 100 Blk N DOWNTOWN
Commerce, 200 Blk E Market; little time and expense invovled
LW 2 Downtown improvements,bathrooms, electric, pedestrian safety, beautification, wifi, lighting  |?? DOWNTOWN
AGS 9 [Parking around and surrounding the square. Issues with larger vehicles parked in areas that are DOWNTOWN
narrow and that make it hard to see oncoming traffic
LW 1 |Expanding economic development department, budget, office, staff?, marketing General fund, LEDC ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 3 Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts; contact ECCONOMIC DEV
existing and vacant building owners to see if they are willing to work with the City of Lockhart
to bring retail businesses and speciality shops, as well as industrial. Purchase buildings and
land when on the market for possible new businesses for the city.
JC 3 Economic Development ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 5 |Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart. ECCONOMIC DEV
M Set up meetings with developers for more retail space shopping centers along US 183 ECCONOMIC DEV

Page 1




LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL (PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and
AGS 6 Restaurants) ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 1 |All Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for all City Employees. EMPLOYEES
M 1 City Employee Raises EMPLOYEES
M 2 |House or fund gym membership/space (weight rm) in Senior Center area (cardio machine) for EMPLOYEES
City employees
AGS 8 |Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time Off-Alternating System. Even though EMPLOYEES
this has been discussed and the reasons for why it cannot be done, | would like to see a time
off alternating system, especailly during the holidays.
BW 1 |ENFORCE ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 1 |Enforce city ordinance regarding residential property ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 3 |Continue to work on City Park improvements PARKS
M 3 Do inventory of City properties to idenify areas for pocket parks LEDC funds PARKS
LW 3 Park improvements General fund PARKS
BH 5 Parks Improvements General Fund PARKS
JC 5 Parks PARKS
AGS 7 |Parks Improvemens: Purchase and update the park equipment to provide safe and fun filled PARKS
parks for all to use.
LW 7 |Town branch cleanup and beautification ?7?? PARKS
M 4  |Start process of Funding Sidewalks east of 183 connecting to the US 183 sidewalks SIDEWALKS
LW 6 |sidewalk repair and expansion general fund bond SIDEWALKS
BH 1 IMPLEMENT SIGNAGE IN LOCKHART General Fund (LEDC) and/or SIGNAGE
Hotel Tax
LW 4  |wayfinding, branding general fund SIGNAGE
LW 5 Entry signs general fund SIGNAGE
Jeff M 6 |Signage on Highway 183 and SH130 = directing people to Lockhart SIGNAGE
BW 4 SR CITIZENS CTR
Pursue opportunity to move Senior Citizens' Center to St Paul United Church of Christ Property
JC 1 Roads Grants or impact fees STREETS/INFRAS
AGS 2 Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing, STREETS/INFRAS
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods
BH 2 Continue improving City Streets Increase Transportation Fund STREETS/INFRAS
Jeff M 5 |Continue to make improvements and redoing our city streets STREETS/INFRAS

Page 1




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Infastructure

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad

1 Castillo water raw water mains and find additional water for the future.
Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for city employees so that we can keep our Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
1|/Gonzales-Sanchez current city employees. 29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l

Improve City Cemetery with GF Expiring debt saving and/or Cemetery Tax

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law. Expiring GF debt

1 Hilburn committed to Police and Fire increased pay rates. ($132,000)
Find ways to use activity center for multi-purpose use. (basketball, volleyball). Funding source:
1 Mendoza Different companies in town If approved by Council staff would approach local businesses
Continue to improve infrastructure (drainage, street repairs) throughout the city
1 Michelson Complete 2015 CO and budget $250,000 per year for street materials
Enforce ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town.
Make homeowners/residents (because some may be renters) take pride in their environment.
It is an eyesore to drive around town and see overgrown properties, junked cars, and stacks of
trash on porches, in yards and driveways. All levels of socio-economic residents in this town
have shown evidence of being disrespectful to their environment. City has no esthetics ordinance currently. The term "unsightly" is
1/Westmoreland subjective and is difficult to prove in court.

[y

White

Economic Development-expanding budget to get staff qualified to help Sandra with
recruitment, working with LEDC to either build Spec building or invest in more property, Main St
program to relieve Sandra of a lot of those duties

Main Street Program would require another person and funding to work
with local businesses while Economic Development would conscentrate
on new businesses and new jobs

Castillo

Economic Development

Need 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf and
buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing

N

Gonzales-Sanchez

Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing,
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad
water raw water mains and find additional water for the future. Most
streets that lack curbing will need to be totally reconstructed. Brighter
LED lights being experimented with since costs have come down.

Implement City Signage

Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost

2 Hilburn could be more than $70,000
New_ Park equipment. Funding Source: Each Councilmember responsible for a park and finding Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
2/Mendoza funding sources Parks Board Advisory Board
Continue to improve ways to attract businesses to Lockhart
Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf
2|Michelson and buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing
Create a policy for the residency of future admininstrative positions to live within the Lockhart
city limits. If an administrator wants to be employed by the City of Lockhart, they need to reside |It is not legal to require all department heads to live in the City limits;
here. Sharing in the daily lives of our citizens seems crucial to making decisions about only the City Manager is required to do so. All non-24 emergency
2 Westmoreland Lockhart. They are paid by city taxes. response employees must live within 25 mintues of City Limis

2|White Continue street rehab Need $ 250,000 annually minimum for street work materials
. City Facilites Not sure what this includes; can asses all departments for physical
3|Castillo needs
Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts ;
contact existing and vacant bldg owners to see if they are willing to work with City to bring LEDC could fund another report but the company says our numbers still
these small retail businesses, as well as industrial; possibly purchasing two downtown county |should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
buildings when on the market for possible new businesses in the downtown area. Stronger recruitment. Prime softgood companies constantly want to be on
platform with LEDC with methods to sell Lockhart and attract businesses. Highway 183 in 12-15,000 sf and at a reasonalbe cost per sf plus higher
3/Gonzales-Sanchez traffic counts.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority Council Person Goals Submitted City Manager Comments
Current transportation monthly rate is $ 4 for residential and others;
$260,000 annual which helps fund labor and equipment, but is not
sufficient for materials. Another $250,000 for materials is needed
3/ Hilburn Continue improving city streets: Increase Transportation Fund annually.
Wi-Fi Free Zones Downtown Square. Funding source City Budget, School District, Downtown
3/Mendoza sponsors Rough estimate is about $12,000
Refurbish City Hall If atrium removed, add more offices estimated at $45,000 and more
outside landscaping estimated at $ 5,000; elevator going in with
3|Michelson improvements to restrooms and offices

w

Westmoreland

Approach interested and future businesses cordially.
Stringent ordinances (and the way they are approached), scare off some businesses. Let's be
friendly in a positive way.

City Mgr respectfully requests names of such businesses. He has met
with 18 business representatives over past 15 months that were looking
at Lockhart but did not come. Except for the non-residential exterior
building esthetics ordinance, none of them indicated a problem with the
current ordinances or with staff. The main problems were high land
prices and the lack of "ready built retail and industrial buildings", and
traffic counts were not high enough. Most thought the impact fee
schedules were very reasonable compared to other cities. Will continue
to work toward friendlier customer service with simplified ordinances.

Park master plan to consider park bond issue, recreation dept and staff issues

Master Plan estimate: $ 45,000, recreation dept est at least $
60,000 for a recreational professional with another $30,000 for

3/White equipment and materials
Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l
Employees Wages Cost FY 16-17 due to Civil Serv Pay Plan Expansions already
4 Castillo apprroved: $ 132,000
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds to bring pack a_much needed P'0|ICE Tas'k Force to Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work: total cost
address any drug and gang related problems this city is being faced with especially on the East could be more than $70,000
4/Gonzales-Sanchez  |side of our city. Possibly ask the County to assist with funding. '

Continue working on bringing industry to Lockhart: Continue supporting Ms. Mauldin

LEDC is will have sufficient funding to be more aggressive starting FY 16-|

4 Hilburn 17
4 Mendoza Training Start up: Neighborhood Watch Training and Program: Police Budget E:::utsrfgf'\ll:éih(g‘ogz:)tic:;?p\;vtiagﬁhvli)/irlcl)ig;a:g 't?yp:gs;zl_“ was not sustained
4 Michelson Improve signage on HWY 183 as well as SH130 = directing people to Lockhart Possibly use of some of the KTB grant money

Evaluate and/or change the degree of the angled parking along the 4 blocks off of the square.

This would be: Main Street from Market to Prairie Lea Street; Main Street from San Antonio

Street to Walnut Street; Commerce Street from Market Street to Prairie Lea Street, and

Commerce Street from San Antonio Street to Walnut Street. These parking spaces were made

before long vehicles were made! If ther are cars parked on both sides of the streets, only one

care can pass through at a time. Then it becomes a one lane street. | have witnessed a Estimate to black out existing thermoplastic markings, redefine layout,

differenct angled parking arrangement, and it provides more room and is much safer for the and apply new thermoplastic markings with angle parking  =$ 12,000;
4 Westmoreland drivers and pedestrians. will probably loose 4 spaces per block. 2 on each side

Branding and wayfinding—may be included in #1 Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
4 White could be more than $70,000

Parks Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
5|Castillo Parks Board Advisory Board

Working with 6 more subdivisons, either new or expanding, and possibly

5/Gonzales-Sanchez Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart one more very large one northwest.

Improve tourism in Lockhart - City Council continue to work with and encourage Chambers of
Commerce to be more involved

Council can make this directive to Chambers when dividing out HOT

5|Hilburn funds
Finding more funding for Retail Market Study. Zip code demographics with reports. Funding LEDC could fund another |"eport but the company says our numbers stil
LEDC should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
5/Mendoza recruitment.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016



Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Work with LEDC or someone equivalent to build a building to help attract business

Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf.
Most softgood retailers want 12-15,000 on Hwy 183 at a reasonable

5|Michelson price and increased traffic volumes
Sidewalks to include lighting Funding required; for example San Jacinto to Jr High estimate is
5/White $130,000 just for materials along Maple walkway
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
Restaurants) could be more than $70,000. Chambers could use HOT for more
6 Gonzales-Sanchez tourism.

Continue to work on City Park improvements

Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

6 Michelson Parks Board Advisory Board

6 White Pursue possible ESD-EMS district Legal issue with participation by County and City of Luling preferable
Parks Improvemens: Purchase more park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all |Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

7|Gonzales-Sanchez to use. Parks Board Advisory Board

Mendoza

Start Talks With YMCA Austin again. Seek sponsors funding if necessary

Our population hurt in previous discussions, Will pursue again. They
usually want commitment for a minimum number of individuals and
families depending on population of not only City but its metro area

~

Michelson

Work on building a civic center/ recreation center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

~

White

Cemetery maintenance

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law

[ee]

Gonzales-Sanchez

City Hall: Refurbish with Improvements and/or Upgrades

Elevator and improvements to restrooms planned; better offices for
Connie and Sandra planned also.

©o

Gonzales-Sanchez

Convention Center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

10

Gonzales-Sanchez

Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time off-Alternating system

City emlpoyees now have 12 holidays and 1 personal holiday; time off is
granted by seniority with department head responsible for keeping
sufficient personnel to serve the public needs. Employees also receive
at least 2 weeks of vacation time. Those employees required to work on
holidays receive their normal pay plus holiday pay.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




City of Lockhart

Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/18

Description Paid Debt 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 TISETBA‘I'L
General Government

Hotel Tax Fund

2016 GO Refunding 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 400,000
Total Hotel Tax Fund P & | - 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 - - - - - - - 400,000
LEDC

2015 Tax & Revenue 100.00% 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,048,596
Total LEDC Fund P & | 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,048,5-96
2015 Capital Projects Fund

2015 Tax & Revenue | -
Total 2015 Capital Prochts Fund Fund P & | - - - - - - - - - - - - B - B - B N N
Drainage

2015 Tax & Revenue 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 1,700,000
Total Drainage Fund P & | 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 1,700,(;00
General Fund

2015 Tax & Revenue -
Total General Fund P & | - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - N - N N
Debt Service Fund

2006 Tax & Rev CO's | 100.00% 47,175 50,535 48,690 46,845 146,070
2006-A Tax & Rev CO's| 93.00% 267,890 267,803 267,332 271,128 806,2-64
2015 Tax & Revenue TRNSF 186,594 186,302 186,653 186,945 279,275 279,421 278,487 278,662 278,735 279,261 279,523 291,203 290,590 290,773 290,222 290,798 290,554 291,374 4,548,7-78
2015 Tax & Revenue 12.00% 117,779 117,659 117,803 117,923 155,867 155,927 155,543 155,615 155,645 155,861 155,969 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 2,567,9-90
2016 GO Refunding 74.84% 171,056 346,930 361,150 353,161 656,899 666,927 661,698 666,974 673,111 670,566 678,350 - - - - - - - 5,735,7-66
Total Debt Service Fund P & | 790,494 969,229 981,628 976,002 | 1,092,041 | 1,102,275 | 1,095,728 | 1,101,251 | 1,107,491 | 1,105,688 | 1,113,842 451,972 451,107 451,365 450,587 451,400 451,056 452,205 13,804,8-68
Total General Governm‘en[ 938,587 | 1,157,273 | 1,169,731 | 1,164,154 | 1,295,686 | 1,305,945 | 1,299,241 | 1,304,794 | 1,311,046 | 1,309,331 | 1,317,529 617,619 616,651 616,940 616,069 616,979 616,594 617,881 16,953,464




Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/18

Description Paid Debt 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 TII?ETBA‘I'L
Proprietary

Electric Fund

2013 SIB Loan 30.81% 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 1,067,268
Total Electric Fund P & - 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 - - 1,067,2-68
Water Fund

2006A Tax & Rev CO's 7.00% 20,164 20,157 20,122 20,408 60,687
2015 Tax & Revenue 49.60% 486,818 486,322 486,917 487,413 644,248 644,496 642,909 643,207 643,331 644,223 644,670 664,510 663,468 663,778 662,842 663,822 663,406 664,800 10,614,362
2016 GO Refunding 21.81% 49,849 101,103 105,247 102,919 191,435 194,357 192,833 194,371 196,159 195,418 197,686 - - - - - - - 1,671,528
2013 SIB Loan 35.80% 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 1,240,140
Total Water Fund P & | - 639,507 690,258 694,962 693,416 918,359 921,529 918,418 920,254 922,166 922,317 925,032 747,186 746,144 746,454 745,518 746,498 663,406 664,800 13,586,717
Sewer Fund

2015 Tax & Revenue 4.30% 42,204 42,161 42,213 42,256 55,852 55,874 55,736 55,752 55,773 55,850 55,889 57,609 57,518 57,545 57,464 57,549 57,513 57,643 920,197
2016 GO Refunding 3.35% 7,657 15,529 16,166 15,808 29,404 29,853 29,619 29,855 30,130 30,016 30,364 - - - - - - - 256,7-44
2013 SIB Loan 33.39% 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 1,156,5-37
Total Sewer Fund P & | 126,963 134,793 135,481 135,166 162,359 162,829 162,457 162,710 163,005 162,968 163,356 134,711 134,620 134,648 134,566 134,651 57,513 57,643 2,333,4;78
Total Proprietary Fund‘P &l - 837,621 896,203 901,594 899,733 | 1,151,869 | 1,155,510 | 1,152,026 | 1,154,116 1,156,323 | 1,156,436 | 1,159,539 953,049 951,915 952,253 951,236 952,301 720,919 722,443 16,987,463
Grand Total } 1,776,208 | 2,053,476 = 2,071,326 | 2,063,887 | 2,447,555 2,461,455 2,451,267 @ 2,458,910 2,467,369 @ 2,465,767 2,477,068 1,570,668 | 1,568,566 @ 1,569,193 | 1,567,305 1,569,280 | 1,337,513 | 1,340,324 33,940,927










